10.

CITY OF MONTICELLO, FLORIDA

MEETING AGENDA
August 1, 2023
7:00 p.m.

LOCATION OF MEETING:
Jefferson County Courthouse Annex
435 W. Walnut Street
Monticello, FL 32344

Call to Order by Mayor Gloria Cox (Please turn off or mute noise-making
devices)

Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

Swearing In of Group 5 City Council Member Katrina Richardson by
Honorable County Judge Robert Plaines :

Public Comment

CONSENT AGENDA:

*Approval of Council Minutes of July 11, 2023

*Approval of Travel Expenses for Council Member Richardson’s
Attendance at Elected Municipal Officers Class

*Approval of Holy Ghost Revival Center March for Jesus on
August 12, 2023 (no street closures necessary)

Florida Job Growth Infrastructure Grant Agreement —
Interim City Attorney Mitchell Herring Report / Council Discussion and Action

PUBLIC HEARING / COUNCIL ACTION:

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS —
101 N. Cherry Street — Building Signage

Clayton Tolbert in re: Police Department and Proposed Budget

Jason Brookins in re: Update on City Flag Proposal




11,  Approval of Engineering Services Agreement with Mittauer and Associates
for WWTP Operating Permit Renewal

12.  Budget Discussions / Determination of Proposed Ad Valorem Rate and Date of
Tentative Budget Hearing

13. 0ld Business
14. New Business

15.  Reports from Committees and Departments
*Fred Mosley, Police Chief
*Seth Lawless, City Manager
*Emily Anderson, City Clerk
*Mitchell Herring, Interim City Attorney

16.  Council Member Reports

17.  Upcoming Meetings/Workshops
*Scheduling Meeting for Review of City Attorney RFQ Responses
*Other Workshops/Meetings

18.  Adjournment

Minutes of the City Council meetings may be obtained from the City Clerk’s Office or online at
www.citvofimonticello.us. The minutes are recorded, but are not transcribed verbatim, Persons requiring a verbatim
transeript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or arrange to have a court reporter
present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be borne by the requesting party.

Persons who wish to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any maiter considered at this
meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

In accordance with Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to
participate in this meeting should contact the Mayor through the City Clerk’s office no later than 5:00 P,M. on the day
prior to the meeting.

PROTOCOL FOR ADDRESSING THE COUNCIL
(Resolution 2020 - 07)

Members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on each agenda item, and othet matters coming
before the City Council, except as provided for below. This right does not apply to:

A. An official act that must be taken to deal with an emergency situation affecting the public health, welfare,
or safety, if compliance with the requirements would cause an unreasonable delay in the ability of the
Council to act;

B. An official act involving no more than a ministerial act, including, but not limited to, approval of
Minutes and ceremonial proclamations,

C. A meeting that is exempt from Sec. 286.011, Florida Statutes; or

D. A meeting during which the Council is acting in a quasi-judicial capacity.




REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL

Any person or group desiring to be placed on the agenda, any individual desiring to make a comment at a City Council
meeting on an agenda item or other matter coming before the City council, and any individual who wishes to address
the Council on any other matter may do so.

A. Placement on the Agenda. Any person or group desiring to be placed on the agenda for a City Council
meeting shall deliver a written request to the City Clerk by 4:00 p.m. at least eight (8) days ptior to the
meeting. The request shall include:

1. the name and address of the person making the request;

2. the organization or group, if any represented;

3. the information to be presented. If written material is to be passed out at the meeting, a copy
of such material shall accompany the request;

4, an estimate of the time necessary for such presentation and discussion and discussion and
action thereon;

5. The specific action which the individual or group wants the Council to take action on.

B. Agenda Item. Any individual desiring to be heard on an agenda item may do so at the time the
Council addresses that matter.

C. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Item. Any interested person may, upon signing the signup sheet in
the room prior to the commencement of any City Councit meeting, address the Council during the Public
Comment portion of the meeting on any matter which is not on the agenda. The Council will not be
obligated to act on any matter which is not on the agenda.

ADDRESSING THE COUNCIL
Each person addressing the council shall give his/her name and address in an audible tone of voice for the record.

Each speaker shall limit his/her address to three (3) minutes, with the presiding officer having the right to extend the
time for one (1) mimute. Additional time may be granted by majority vote of the Council. A speaker may not give up
all or any portion of his or her time in order to allow another speaker to exceed three (3) minutes.

If four (4) or more individuals of a group or faction wish to be heard on a matter before the Council, a representative
may address the Council rather than all of the members. In such instances, the representative shall limit their address to
ten (10) minutes.

All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, and not to any member thereof. No remarks shall be directed
to any other individual City official or employee.

No person, other than members of the Council, and the person having the floor shall be permitted to enter into any
discussion, either directly or through the members of the Council. When requested by any member of the City Council,
the City Clerk-Treasurer, City Manager, City Police Chief, City Attorney, as well as staff members may enter into any
discussion.

No questions shall be asked of the members of the City Council, except through the presiding officer.
The City Clerk-Treasurer, City Manager, City Police Chief and the City Attoimey may as the presiding officer for
permission to speak at any time.

DECORUM

All participants, speakers and any other persons present at a meeting shall refrain from belittling anyone or making
insulting remarks or personal attacks on any individual present or absent. Any person disrupting a meeting by making
personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks, or who interrupts & person speaking, or becomes boisterous or uses
profanity or other offensive language while addressing the Council, may be requested to leave the meeting and may be
forthwith barred by the presiding officer from returning to the meeting. Any person who refuses to leave the meeting
after being requested to do so by the presiding officer, shall be removed from the meeting by law enforcement.

Any personal charges to be made against an individual council member or city employee shall be in affidavit form. If
any information is to be presented that is in the form of a statement or charges that might be considered derogatory or
of a serious nature, such shall be presented in writing and shall specifically state the charges in the form of an affidavit,
with copies sufficient in number so that one copy may, and it shall, be sent at once to each such member or employee.
Neither this rule nor any other shall preclude the right of any citizen to address the Council; however, the Council will
not be obligated to act on any proposal not on the agenda.




The City Council of the City of Monticello, Florida, met in regular session at the
Monticello City Hall on July 11, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.

The following members were present:

Gloria Cox
Julie Conley
John Jones
George Evans

Others present were:

Seth Lawless, City Manager

Fred Mosley, Police Chief

Emily Anderson, City Clerk

Mitchell Herring, Interim City Attorney

Mayor Gloria Cox called the meeting to order. Council Member John Jones led the
invocation.

Mayor Cox led the Pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENT _

County Commissioner Austin Hosford and county residents Jennifer Tyler, James Allen,
Larry Pijut, Bill Velinsky and Charles Moore expressed opposition to a proposed Lloyd
sewer project and asked the City to not pursue the project. City Manager Lawless
reported that he has received word that an amended agreement will be forthcoming, and
the State has asked that the Council take action at their August meeting,

CONSENT AGENDA

*Approval of Council Minutes of June 6, 2023

*Resolution 2023 — (7 Amending the 22-23 Budget After Audit

On motion of Jutie Conley, seconded by John Jones, the Council voted unanimously to
approve the Consent Agenda items,

JASON BROOKINS IN RE: SUGGESTION OF OFFICIAL CITY FLAG The
Council told Mr. Brookins they would consider his suggestions for a city flag.

ROGER CHAMPION OF THE MONTICELLO-JEFFERSON COUNTY
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE —- REQUEST FOR CONTRIBUTION Mr.
Champion asked that the Council consider a contribution to the Chamber. Council
Member Conley suggested that as the budget is finalized, consideration be given to
providing for some contribution.




NOMINATION TO FILL VACANCY OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBER GROUP 5
—MAYOR GLORIA COX/COUNCIL ACTION Mayor Cox noted that Katrina
Richardson has been elected to fill the Group 5 seat. Council Member Julie Conley made
a motion to appoint Katrina Richardson to fill the vacant Group 5 Council seat. Council
Member George Evans seconded the motion. After discussion, the Council voted
unanimously to approve the appointment.

RECOMMENDATION FOR ELIMINATION OF BUSINESS TAX PROGRAM -
CITY CLERK Clerk Anderson asked the Council to consider elimination of the-
business tax program, noting the net revenue from the tax is approximately $4,000, but
the program has no regulatory purpose and the local business participation is very low.
On motion of Council Member John Jones, seconded by Council Member Julie Conley,
the Council voted unanimously to eliminate the business tax program.

OLD BUSINESS

*CONTINUED FROM JUNE MEETING — REQUEST FOR DECLARATION OF
SURPLUS PROPERTY City Manager Lawless noted the city has no use for the
garbage truck, and he would like permission to surplus the vehicle. On motion of
Council Member Julie Conley, seconded by Council Member John Jones, the Council
voted unanimously to surplus the garbage truck. Council Member Evans requested that
old garbage containers be picked up if they are on the right-of-way.

*POLICE CAR STORAGE PROPOSALS The old police cars will be stored at a lot at
the city barn. Chief Mosley noted that a gravel base will be needed for the storage area.

NEW BUSINESS

*MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING REGARDNG DISASTER DEBRIS
MANAGEMENT SITE On motion of Council Member George Evans, seconded by
Council Member Julie Conley, the Council unanimously approved the Memorandum of
Understanding with the County.

*REVIEW OF RFQ FOR LEGAL SERVICES City Manager Lawless noted the RFQ
will be published and responses will be due by August 10, Council Member Conley
noted that the RFQ specifically requires city experience. Once applications are received,
there will be a determination of the process for review.

*REQUEST BY COUNCIL MEMBERS FOR TRAVEL APPROVAL FOR
ATTENDANCE AT FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE
Council Member Conley asked that the travel expense forms be filled out.




DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE FOR THE FLORIDA LEAGUE OF
CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE On motion of Council Member George Evans,
seconded by Council Member Jones, the Council voted unanimously to designate the
Mayor as the voting delegate at the Florida League of Cities conference.

BUDGET REVIEW City Manager Lawless reviewed the budget changes, noting the
current deficit and some suggestions for changes, including moving some money from
reserves. Council Member Conley suggested the lobbyist position amount budgeted
could be reduced, but noted there is an unknown factor of solid waste fees.

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES AND DEPARTMENTS

*City Manager Seth Lawless noted that he and the Public Works Director will attend a
FEMA training for storm reimbursement requests.

*City Clerk Emily Anderson reported that Merry Ann Frisby has resigned from the
Firefighters Pension Board after many years of service.

COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS

*Council Member George Evans noted misinformation regarding the Lloyd sewer
project by the public and the misunderstanding that the city originally initiated the
project.

*Council Member John Jones noted a message he received from Congressman Dunn
regarding a grant award. He also noted a large pile of dirt which needs removing.

*Mayor Gloria Cox noted continued efforts on community revitalization.

*Council Member Julie Conley noted that there are bags of garbage on North Cherry
Street. City Manager Lawless also reported that there may be a switch to smaller cans
for some service addresses.

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Emily Anderson
City Clerk/Treasurer

Mayor




REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF TRAVEL EXPENSES
REQUESTOR: ahina Ruchardsen
EVENT  Zlected Municipa) Dffcers Class
DEPARTURE DATE AND TIME: delster J, [Z £M
RETURN DATE AND TiVE: Dedster 8 gA4M

EXPENSLS:
Conference Registration § 30

ﬁ%@d
3 Nights Hotel @ $5%might § 465 A

Meals:

J breakfasts $6 ca. $ 19
- Z. lunches  $11 ea. $ 22

.3 dinners  $19ea $5 7

Parkingi days @ A5 /day $ 45

Mileage -3 Zpmiles @ $.445/mi s 7 22962
TOTAL 536, b2




CITY OF MONTICELLO

APPLICATION FOR PARADE OR PROCESSION
' (Revised 3/2/2010)
Must be reviewed by City Manager, City Police Chief and approved by City Council
**Application must be submitted no later than 60 days prior to parade
Jfor parades on federal highways

ﬂébfkdlé 12,202 Tanch, Gor Mwoo

Date of Parade/Procession Parade/Procession Name
Aeal nay/P ﬁwneﬂb 1/2E. wdshim%m Awy ( 250 ) HYUS-4/D

Namg of Requestor/Representative “Address J Phone

’f 1/01? 72 ’Q/R 5%7 d Liod
€0 uestor/Represepiati O

' O/L/ 45 ﬂUt\I;Q Eim-tv 2/syd Lla, 353 =7 (%50 445- ?‘//‘D

Namé of Organization Ad’dress Phone

Start Time of Parade/Procession End Time of Parade/Processmn

Give a brief description of the parade/procession and explain how this event will benefit
the remdents and/or i 1Krove the qudhty of life in the City of Monticello:

i
7

Anticipated Number of Entrants: '
1 - 25 : 51 - 100
26 - 50 __ Over100

Route of Parade or,Procession ncludmg starting point and ending point):

Stoard Couvinouse cuf%mo Lg v Eas #w:;/ 20
+Uin ﬂm})—f o Wﬂr-ﬁn Lu#ﬂ»«k;na ' |

N01/°

Are road closures requested for parade? Yes

If road closure is desired, list specific road sections:

A map or sketch of the parade route must be attached to the application. (City staff will
provide assistance in producing the map) '

NOTE: Just cc march on Hhe gidewalll. No road
Closures naeded. |




FEES CHARGED
Maintenance and police charges are charged as follows:

*For parades requiring closure of federal

highways-no longer than 1 ' hours: $ 400.00
*For parades Involving Only Closure of Local
Streets: _ $ 100.00
*For parades involving closure of federal
highways in excess of 1 % hours: To be Set by City Council

By signing this Application, the sponsoring organization agrees to:
(Please Initial}
Conduct the event in an orderly manner;
To obey all laws of the City of Monticello and lawful orders of the Monticello
Police Department;
QJ% Distribute copies of the accompanying City of Monticello Parade/Procession
Regulat1ons to all parade/procession entrants.

Liability Disclaimer: The City of Monticello does not provide liability insurance for the
protection of participants, spectators, merchants, or others who participate in permitted
parade/processional events. In consideration of being permitted to conduct such
activities, the sponsoring organization, by ﬁlmg a peimit application, does hereby release
and forever hold harmless and discharge the Czty of Monticello, its Ofﬁcers, Officials,
Employees and agents, jointly and severally, frgm any and all damages arising out of any
loss or injury resulting fromthe 777 Fot f20ud 2622
(name/yea:r of event) and for any and ] losses or injury to persons

atten_ding this event,

By signing this application, I certify the following:

* have read and understand the foregoing liability disclaimer;

*] certify that the event will be open to all citizens, and that individuals will not be barred
from participation due to race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, or physical

impairment.
W bemste]

Auth8rized Signature of Requestor/Representative
(must be 21 years of age or older and an officially
designated spokesperson for the sponsoring:

Organization) .
(7 74) 7M./
Title

2-6-33

Date




For City Use:
Date Application Received: 7 } 17 I 22

e

Received By: O/C)}(f"/

Fees Paid - Ck. No./Rec. No. -

s o ook ok o o ook e o oo o o st ook o o oo o ok e ok e o ot o e o ke s ke o e s ok ol ook ok sk ol e o e sk ok ofe s o ok o
To Be Completed by City Staff:

Police Department: - : .
Application ____Approved __ Denied: . . Date:
Signature

Comments:

Public Wbrks:
Application __ Approved ___ Denied: _ Date:
Signature

Comments:

City Council: :
Application __ Approved ___Denied: Date:




NT .1 TAMPA
. a ] 0 rS 2502 Racky Point Drive
' Suite 1060
TAL-LA-HASSEE . . B Tampa, Flotida 33607
1500 Mahan Diive 10110 V) (813) 261-2222 Tel
Sue200 s sl W% {813) 2610129 Fax
Tallahassee, Florida 32304 .

. -
i Nickerson: -

8201 Peters Road
ATTORNEYS AT LAW $uite. 1000
Plantation, Florida 33324
(054} 315-0268 Tel
July 17, 2023

Via Electronic Mail

Mitchell Herring
mherring@sniffenlaw.com
Sniffen & Spellman, PA
123 North Manroe Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301

Re: City of Monticello
Dear Mr. Herring:

This firm represents Jefferson County as county attorney, and [ am writing to you
in your capacity as the interim City Aftorney for the City of Monticello to convey the
Jefferson County Board of County Commissioners’ (‘BoCC”) current position with
regard to the City’s alleged plans for providing a wastewater package treatment plant to
serve properties in the vicinity of the I-10/SR 59 intersection near Lloyd (the “Lloyd
Area’), as set forth in the attached “draft’ Florida Job Growth Infrastructure Grant
Agreement. If there is a final or most recent copy of this agreement, | would kindly
request a copy of those public records.

Please see the attached Resolution No. 2023-01, which was adopted by the
BoCC on January 5, 2023. In this resolution, the BoCC expressed its opposition to the
City’s current efforts to bring sewer services to the Lloyd Area at this time and repealed
the Board's prior resolution in support of these efforts, Most recently, at its July 6, 2023,
BoCC meeting, the BoCC reaffirmed its opposition to the City’s efforts with regard to the
provision of sewer services by building a package treatment plant in the Lloyd Area.

In addition to the above request for a copy of the City’s propesed grant
agreement, | also request copies of the City’s resolution or ordinance and relevant
supporting documentation where the City extended its utility service area outside its
municipal limits in accordance with Chapter 180, Florida Statutes. | would also be
interested in the City's justification for being able to serve more than five miles outside
its municipal limits, which appears to be precluded by Section 180.02, Florida Statues.




Mitchell Herring
July 17, 2023
Page 2

If you would like to discuss this issue in more detail, please feel free to call me at
the above Tallahassee number,

Very truly yours,

eather J. Encinosa.

Enclosures

Ce.  Shannon Metty, Jefferson County Manager




RESOLUTION NO. o)003- Q)

A RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS, REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 2021-081921-01 iN

SUPPORT OF THE FLORIDA JOB GROWTH GRANT FUND

APPLICATION BY THE CITY OF MONTICELLO FOR THE |-10/SR-59

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE; AND

FPROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on or about August 19, 2021, the Jefferson County Board of County
Commissioners approved Resaolution No, 2021-081921-01 in support of the City of
Monticello's application to the Department of Economic Opportunity for the 2021-2022
Florida Job Growth Grant Fund - Public Infrastructure (the “Grant”) lo fund the
construction of a lift station at the 1-19/SR-59 interchange and a force main to connect {o
the City of Monticello’s wastewater freatment ptant; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the approval of Resolution No. 2021-081921-01 the
County's engineer determined that the economical provision of central wastewater
services to this area under current conditions is impractical or infeasible; and

WHEREAS, the Jefferson County Board of County Commissioners determines
this project is no longer in the best interest of the citizens of Jefferson County.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, FLORIDA, that:

SECTION 1. RECITALS, The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2. REPEAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 2021-081921-01.

(A)  Jefferson County Board of County Commissioners Resolution No. 2021-

081921-01 and the County's support for the Grant are hereby repealed.




(B)  The County Manager is hereby directed to provide an executed copy of this
Resolution to the City of Monticello and the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its
adoption,

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED at the meeting of the Board of County

Commissioners of Jefferson County, Florida on the él,-h dayof _JTanfuaryd 2023,

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, FLORIDA

Chris’Tuten, Chair

ATTEST:

A

/ Clerk of the Circuit Court

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

A

eather J. Encinosa, Esq.




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

FLORIDA JOB GROWTH INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT AGREEMENT
STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

THIS FLORIDA JOB GROWTH INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement™)
is made and entered into by and between the State of Florida, Department of Commerce (“Commerce”), and
City of Monticello {“Grantee”). Commerce and Grantee are sometimes referred to herein individually as a
“Party” and collectively as “the Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Pursuant o section 288.101, Florida Statutes (“F ™ Granfee submitted a proposal for

funds; &
o \%"a"

WHEREAS, based on Grantee’s submitted proposdf aﬂd“‘e‘my ameridiiients thereto (collectively, the

“Proposal”), Commerce has determined that the project dcgscnbéﬁ‘i}';“ﬁxhlblt A, t;:@ e of Work, attached and
incorporated in this Agreement (the “Project’} is ncceasﬁ‘ry to facilityte the econorm&?c}ﬁ%ﬂopmmt and growth
of the State; e ‘,',- 'n;
5 i

' }":f:"'» ‘\\%
WHEREAS, Commerce has determined that '(‘-; teeis' comn‘utments satisfyithe requirements
necessary to recommend the proposed promcthdescnbed in the )goswl to the Governor of the State of Florida

7 ‘,1,1 d”) pursuant to Section 288.101, F.S.;

ES.
nltetmuvely, by other Co
Exhibit E and made a parg

. ripliance G
. Exﬁiia";&D Grantee’s Resolutwn

. Exhlb;t"-‘E Notice of Cﬁmpletlon and Engineer’s Certification of Compliance

»  Exhibit F&, State and Feﬁeral Statutes, Regulations, and Policies;

WHEREAS, this A ent and its Fxhibits are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agreement”,

and if any inconsistencies oiconflict bétween the language of this Agreement and its Exhibits arise, then the
language of the Fxhibits shall control, but only to the extent of the conflict ot inconsistency;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the agreements, covenants and obligations set forth
herein and for other good and valvable consideration, the receipt and sufficdency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Patties, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows:

AGREEMENT
1 TERM. This Agreement is effective as of the date on which Commerce executes this Agreement

(such date, the “Effective Date™) and shall continue until the eatlier to oceur of {a) December 31, 2036 (such
date, the “Expiration Date™) unless an extension of the time period is requested by Grantee and granted in

Page 1 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

writing by Commerce prior to the expiration of this Agreement or (b) the date on which this Agreement is
terminated pursuant to Section 27. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of Sections 2, 7-11, 15, 16,
19, 26-31, 37, and Sections 5 and 11 of Exhibit A, Scope of Work shall survive the termination or expiration
of this Agreement; provided, however, that the record-keeping and audit-selated obligations set forth in Section
11 shall terminate in accordance with the requirements of Section 11, Expiration of this Agreement will be
considered termination of the Project. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that Grantee fully satisfies
its obligations set forth in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, as determined by Commerce in its reasonable discretion,
prior to the date set forth in the preceding sentence, then the “Expiration Date” shall be the date of such
determination,

2, PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS: Grantee shall perform the services specified herein in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all attachnignts and exhibits attached hereto
and incorporated hérein.

3. TYPE OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement is a cost reimy]

4, RELEASE OF PUNDS: Commerce shall pay Gmil to ($4;21Q.000 00} Four Million Two
Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars and Zero Centsin c-;ms.ldemtmn for Gr'mtee:is erformance and services
pursuant to this Agreement. In accordance with s. 287 0582, £.§., the State of orida and Commerce’s
performance and obligation to pay under this Agregfiie contmg&nt upon an 'mnu%l,; propnfltlon by the
Legislaure. Commerce has final anthority as to both th ability gf?'funds and what 5‘ tutcs an “annual
1ppropri1tion of funds. The lack of '1ppropri'1tion or a i

.101, .S, for the exclissive beneﬂt of any
il authority as to what may constitute dn
7 under this Agreement. Use of funds
provldcd pursuant to s. 288.101, F.S, for the exclusive gnefit of any si ompany, corpomlion or business
entty is strictly prohibited, and Commerce may,’ 1;1 its }iﬁl’éxégs;retion te
immediate rep'lym:.nt of all fgnﬂé plus reasonable 1 111,£efest thetééﬁu{ Cﬂmmerce determines that Gmntee used
Eﬁfﬂ,&ment for the e\clus1‘re bent

Stﬂte T\penditures

provided n acco‘p{mce with thic te s of t]m Agreement for the invoice period. P1yment does not become
due under this Agrée gnt until Cor&;’nerce accepts and approves the invoiced delivernble(s) and any required
. report(s).

2) ust contain Grantee’s name, address, federal employer identification
number or other 'lpplicablé* iintee identification number, this Agreement number, the inveice number, and
the invoice peniod. Comgnerce or the State may rcqujre any additional information from Grantee that
Commerce or the State deems necessary to process an invoice in their sole and absclute discretion.

)] Invoices must be submitted in accordance with the fime requirements specifted in
Exhibit A, SCOPE OF WORK.
b. At Commerce’s or the State’s option, Grantee may be required to invoice electzonically

pursuant to guidelines of the Department of Management Services. Current guidelines require that Grantee
supply electronic invoices in lieu of paper-based invoices for those transactions processed through the system.
Electronic invoices shall be sabmitted to Commerce’s Agreement Manager through the Ariba Supplier Network
{ASN) in one of the following mechanisms — EDI 810, cXML, or web-based invoice entty within the ASN.

c. Payment shall be made in accordance with s, 215422, B.S,, governing time limits for payment
of invoices. The SCOPE OF WORK may specify conditions for retainage. Invoices returned to a Grastee due

Page 2 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
to-preparation crrors will result in 2 delay of payment. Commerce is responsible for all payments under this
Agreement.

d. Section 55.03{1), F.5,, identifies the process applicable to the determination of the rate of
interest payable on judgments and dectees, and pursuant to 5. 215.422(3)(b), F.5., this same process applies to
the determination of the rate of interest applicable to late payments to vendors for geods and services purchased
by the State and for contracts wh[ch do not specify a rate of 1 Interest. The applicable rate of interest is published

e. If authoﬂzed 'md apptmred Grantee may be provided an ftdvance as pru:t of this Agreement.

f. VENDOR OMBUDSMAN: In accordance with s, 215.422(5), £.5,, a Vendor Ombudsman,
within the Department of Financial Services, advocates for vendors who may be experiencing problems in
abtaining timely payment(s) from a state agency. The Vendor Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 413-
5516 or by calling the Chief Finaneial Officer’s Hotline, (800) 342-2762. %

6. REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 287.058(1}(A) THROU(‘?H (I),
a. Grantee shall submit bills for fees or other compe itin
sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit thereof.

b. Travel expenses are not aunthorized under chis
¢ Commerce shall have the right to umlat;mlly caneel th15 Agreerﬁegg for Grantee’s refusal to

conjunction with tlus Agreement, unleas the recordsy exempt from 5. 24{z) of .éj;l:lcle I of the State

Constitution and s. 119.67(1), F.S. 28 e
d, Grantee shall perform all tasks contained m*’E:}hJ]?}t”A SCOPE OF WORK, attached hereto
and incorporated herein. Gy e “

e Commerce shall not pay (Q determines satisfactory completion of :
ench Deliverable described in the SCOPE OF: Wt K in 1ccord1nté@4tll the “Minimum Level of Service”
and (2) gives Grantee written notice of same. ‘%‘ g

f. Grantee shall comply with all critgria statetiin, Fxhibit A, SGOPE OF WORK, and final date

by which such criteria must be E%{Q: completion igfdthﬁ Agré‘bmgnt

ot be renewed,
’(}?‘ﬁorm in '1cc0rd’mce with tl.ﬁ%/Agreement Commerce shall apply the
in Lxly%ltA SCOPE GF WORK, of this Agreement.
Sipon in a sepmtate apditing, Grantee shall own all intellectual property
Kpt )ément% and tlfe State of Flocida through Commerce shall own all
Gmntee’§ ﬁgent or contractor cre'!ted or otherwise devel()pcd in

REPRE@NTATIONS “;AcND WARRANTIES.  Grantee hereby makes the following
representations andiFarranties to Ceinmerce, each of which shall be deemed to bea separate tepresentation
and warranty, all of whighhave been*‘hﬂde for the purpose of inducing Commerce to enter inte this Agreement,
and in reliance on \Vhlclvl‘“ gfcc has entered into this Agreement, as of the Effective Date, the dates on
which Grantee submits c1cﬁ“ Guest for reimbursement under this Agreement, and the dates on which Grantee
receives any reimbursementy

a. Grantee has all necessary power and anthoerity to execute and deliver this Agreement and to
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary actions on
" the patt of Grantee. Afier Grantee’s execution and delivery and upon Commerce’s execution and delivery of
this Agreement, this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid, and binding obligation of Grantee, enforceable
against Grantee in accordance with its terms (subject.to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratotium,
reorganization, or similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and the availability of equitable
remedies).

b. Grantee’s execution and delivery of this Agreement and Grantee’s performance of the
transactions contemplated hereby do not: (i) conflict with or result in a breach of any provision of Grantee’s

Page 3 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

charter or similar constitutive document, (i) result in viclation or breach of ot constitute a defanlt (or an event
which, with or without notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a default) under, or result in the
termination, modification, eancellation or acceleration under the terms, conditions, or provisions of any of
Grantee’s indentures, material agreements or other material instruments; or (i} violate any applicable law or
regulation.  Grantee has not been convicted of a “public entity crime” (as such term is defined in Section
287.133 of the Florida Statutes) nor has Grantee been placed on the “diseriminatory vendor list” (as such term
is defined in Section 287.134 of the Florida Statutes). None of Grantee’s elected or appointed officers, agents,
employees, or other persons acting on its behalf has taken any act in furtherance of an offer, payment, promise
to pay, authorization, or ratification of the payment, directly ot indirectly, of any gift, money or anything of
value to a government official or to obtain or retain business from any person or entity in violation of applicable
law.

c. No event, change or condition has occurred that has had, owould reasonably be expected to
have, a material adverse effect on the financial condition of Grantee or tl'i’g wa%s& in each case, since the date
of the Proposal  No litigation, investigation, claim, eriminal prosecution, ivil investigative demand, imposition
of criminal or civil fines and penalties, or any other proceeding of o re any atbitrator or governmental
authority is pending or, to the knowledge of Grantee, threaten&d:B¥ or t Grantee or against any of its
properties or assets, which, individually or in the aggregate, coﬁld\i:e onably \:\; pected to result in a material
and adverse effect on the finandal condition of Granted the Ptoiect or Grintee’s ability to perform its
obhg'mons under thzs Agreement Al criminal mvesngation i

No state ot fed rﬁf

JQ}PICSS represcntanons and warranties set -

nd reg'ttd[ess of \vhcther such _

erce or Entetprlse Floﬂd’l, Inc in
connection \vith the nqu *@ ion of thqs-ngrccmcnt (maludmg, withut limitatton, the Proposal) or delivered
n t‘lkenztogether cont'ﬁﬁed or cont'um, any rmternl ﬂ‘].‘let‘ll'Cant of chr or

light of the ci

e ‘ﬁ%lte of F é? 2 shall govern the construction, enforcement and interpretation
of this ;\% Eiment, regardless of i \Wthoubféf’étence to whether any applicable conflicts of laws principles
may point to’ af’*appllcauon of the'l s of anéther jutisdiction without limiting the provisions of the DISPUTE
RESOLUTION Sdgpon of this Agre'gment the exclusive personal ]urlsd1ction and venue to resolve any and all -
disputes between thagn including, without Emitation, any disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement
shall be in the state couifs, of the State of Florida in the County of Leon. The Parties expressly consent to the
exclusive personal junsdrcfii}@) venue in any state court located in Leon County, Florida, and waive any
defense of forum non convel &hs, lack of persoml jutisdiction, or like defense, and further agree that any and
all disputes between them shiall be solely in the State of Florida. Should any term of this Agreement conflict
with any applicable law, rule, or regularion, the applicable law, rule, or regulation shall control over the
provisions of this Agreement. IN ANY LEGAL OR EQUITABLE ACTION BETWEEN THE PARTIES,
THE PARTIES HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW.

b. If applicable, Grantee is in compliance with the rules for e-procurement as directed by rmle
60A-1.033, FAC, and that it wil maintain eligibility for this Agreement through ¢he
MyFloddaMarketplace.com system.

c Grantee shall not expend any funds provided under this Agreement for the purpose of
lobbying the Legislature, the judicial branch, or any state agency. Commerce shall ensure compliance with s.
11.062, F.8,, and 5. 216.347, .8, Grantee shall not, in connection with this or any other agreement with the

Page 4 of 38

e part of Cbmmcrcc of any untruth of any such
, regardless of whether such o -




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
State, dircetly ot indirectly: (1) offer, confer, or agree to confer any pecuniary benefit on anyone as consideration
for any State officer or employee’s decision, opinion, recommendation, vote, other exercise of discretion, or
violation of a known legal duty; or (2) offer, give, or agtee to give to anyone any gratuity for the benefit of, or .
at the direction or request of, any State officer or employee.  For purposes of clause (2}, “gratuity” means any
payment of moze than nominal monetary value in the form of cash, travel, entertainment, gifts, meals, lodging,
loans, subscriptions, advances, deposits of money, services, employment, or contracts of any kind. Upon
request of Commerce’s Inspector General, or other authorized State official, Grantee shall provide any type of
information the Inspector General deems relevant to Grantee’s integrity or responsibility. Such information
may include, but shall not be limited to, Grantee’s business or financial records, documents, or files of any type
or form that refer to or relate to this Agreement. Grantee shall retain such records in accordance with the
record retention requirements of Part V of Hxhibit B, AUDIT REQUIREMENTS.

d. Grantee shall retmburse the State for the reasonable costSqu investigation incurred by the
Inspector General or other authorized State official for investigations of anté“qs compliance with the terms
of this or any other agreement between Grantee and the State which re 1
Grantee. Such costs shall include, but shall not be limited to: salari
travel and lodging expenses; and expert witness and documenta‘
any costs of investigations that do not result in Grantee’s sus e;nsl
will comply with the requirements of s. 20.055(5), E.S., 1pe[ud1ng’ Bt not nec
Grantee and any of Grantee’s subcontractoss to cooperg%e “with the i mspector gencral* any ].ﬂVCStlg‘l.HOfl andie,
inspection, review, or hea:mg pugsuant to s. 20055, Eﬁ: . g §»

€. ritinds the prowsxorl;.bf;"; B87.133(2)(a),
B.5. pursuant to which a person or 1fﬂli'1te who has beeri®f) cedfon thé-convicted vcnn;;pr list following a
conviction for a public entity esime may ﬂoj;,subrmt a bid, prof or reply on an agreefiient to provide any
goods or services to a public entlty, may ﬂﬁtj‘ i reply on an agreement with a public
entity for the construction or repair of a pul:ih' it te work; may not submit bids, proposals, or
replies on leases of real property to a public enm‘y, m'Ly st be '1\v11ded orfge;fotm wortk asa Gmntec huppher
subcontractor or consultant under an agreement w}th ag:;y“
public entity in excess of the thﬁg;:]@ld amount promjbd ins. 2 :
for a period of 36 monﬂlsﬁf‘rom the»ﬁate of being pfa ed on the conyicted vendor list, Grantee slm]l disclose
to Commerce if Grantgg, ﬁ»{aﬂy of G“::}ntee s affiiates: s defined i3, 287.133(1){a) of the Florida Statutes, is
on the convieted vendor lis % Q\il any &jfiilar st maiataiged by any other state or the federal government.

f. leltatlous ot d\:ﬂfﬁl&lﬂg’ of Agreem‘entw Subject to chapter 119, F.8., Grantee shall not |~

R
publicly dlssw cof‘ff:eftm}g this ﬁgrecment without prior wiritten approval from
Commerce;; md[udmgm Hinat limitedZfp mennomng ,ﬁ"z‘},ﬁ Agréement in o press release or other promotional
material “gentlfymg Com& o0t the ’Sffitc as a refesénce, or otherwise linking Grantee’s name and cither a
descrigtitn of this Agreemen m; Jihc n'xme‘«;;ﬁ -(otpmerce ot the State in any matersl published, either in print
nicilly, to any entity tha@&:got a Pu’fﬁf‘?ﬁg rhls Agreement e\cept potential or actual employees, agents
or

organization that spr_‘m 5 A progrmn Fmanced wholly or in p'l.ft‘ by Sl”lt‘E fi.lﬂdb mcluclmg any funds obtamed
through this Agreement, mg 11 pubhctzmg, advertising, or describing the sponsorship of the program, state:
“Sponsoted by (Gr'mtees te) and the State of Florida, Department of Commerce” Tf the spﬂnsorship
reference is in written ma[;t;ﬂ'l] the words “State of Florida, Department of Commerce” shall appear in the
same size letters or type as the name of the organization.

h. Mandatory Disclosure Requirements:

1) Conflict of Interest: This Agreement is subject to ch'lpter 112, F.8. Grantee shall
disclose the name of any officer, director, employee, or other agent who is also an employee of the State.
Grantee shall also disclose the name of any State employee who owns, directly or indirectly, more than a 5
petcent interest in Grantee or Grantee’s affiliates,

2) Vendors on Scrutinized Companies Lists: Grantee is aware of and understands
the provisions of 5. 287.134(2)(a), F.S. As requiced by s. 287.135(5), Grantee certifies that it is not: (1) listed on.
the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant fo s. 2154725, F.8,; (2) engaged in a
boycott of Israel; (3) listed on the Scratinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized

Page 5 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

Companies with Activities in the Iran Petrolenm Energy Sector List, created pursuant to s, 215.473, E.S,; (4)
engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

a) Pussnant to s. 287.135(5), B.5., Commerce may immediately terminate this
Agreement if Grantee submits a false certification as to the above, or if Grantee is placed on the Scrutinized
Companies that Boycott Israel List, engages in a boycott of Istael, is placed on the Scrutinized Companies with
Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List,
or has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

b} If Commerce determines that Grantee has submitted a false certification,
Commerce will provide written notice to Grantee. Unless Grantee demonstrates in writing, within 90 catendar
days of receipt of the notice, that Commerce’s determination of false certification was made in érror, Commerce
shall bring a civil action against Grantee. If Commerce’s determination is uplheld, & civil penalty equal to the
greater of $2 million or twice the amount of this Agreement shall be imposedion Grantee, and Grantee will be
ineligible to bid on any Agreement with any agency or locak governmental for theee years after the date
of Commerce’s determination of false certification by Grantee.

c) If federal law ceases to authoriz
contracting prohibition identified hetein, this provision shall be

3 Discriminatory Vendors: Gmtﬁé ] ;
affiliates, as defined by s. 287.134(1) (a.), F.S., appears on, ;he discfintinatory ve
placed on the discriminatory vendor list pursuant to 5, «287 134, B.S., may not: (1)
reply on a contract or agreement to provide any goods«,o Crvices to 7 1§£Jubhc entity; (2 bmit a bid, proposal,
or reply on a conteact or agreement with a public endty e consggﬁ‘c[:lon ot repair o gbi’lc building or
public work; (3) submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases’s afizeal pstoperty to a public entfty, (4) be awarded
or perform work as a contractor, subcontéjgtor, Grantee, supplighy subgrantee, or consuleAnt under a contract
or ‘agreement with any public entity; or (3) ti gact business with afif;public entity.
1) Abuse, Neglect, anﬂ%&p}mtaﬁon In L Reportmg In compliance w1t11 58,

39.201 and 415.1034, F.S,, an employee of Gmntee wi‘[o*kngws or has reﬁsomble cause to suspect that a child,

aged person, or disabled adult is or lias been al sc @e@ggrgd ot explyaiﬁz%[ shall lmmedmtely report such

“istates to adopt and enforce the

mmerce if it or any of its
ist. An entity or affiliate
it 2 bid, proposal, or

knowledge or suspicton to uda Abuse Ho ’E by C'].lhﬁ'é” 800- 96’3§BUSE or via the web reporting "
i Afamilies 1 it

shall keep i m'unr'un pubhc records required by Commerce to . -
perform Grantee’s responsiby
public records,
or copied sn{ﬁ1fﬁ # rens
Equirements of ¢

g @:eement Grantee sk k 'msfet ﬁ%ﬁg, cost, to Commerce all public records in possession of Grantee
or kecp mﬂ%runtaln public reéq"i;s requlréggb’y Commerce to perform the service. If Grantee keeps and
matatains publi tecords upon coi‘gpletion of this Agreement, Grantee shall meet afl applicable requirements
for retaining pub[fc»xecmds Ail rew:db stou:d elecuomcaﬂy must be provldcd to Cummerce upon request

ise provided by law. Upon expiration or termination

Commerce does not possess a record requested through a public records
request, Commerce shall n rantee of the request as scon as practicable, and Grantee must provide the
records to Commerce or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time. If Grantee does
not comply with Commerce’s request for records, Commerce shall enforce the provisions set forth in this
Agreement. A Grantee who fails to provide public records to Commerce within a reasonable time may be
subject to penalties under 5. 119.10, .S

<) Grantee acknowledges that Commerce is subject to the provisions of chapter
119, F.5., relating to public records and that reports, invoices, and other documents Grantee submits to
Commerce under this Agreement may constitute public records under Florida Statutes. Grantee shall cooperate
with Commerce regarding Commerce’s efforts to comply with the requirements of chapter 119, F.S.

d) If Grantee submits records to Commerce that are confidential and exempt
from public disclosure as trade secrets or proprietary confidential business information, such records should
be identified as such by Grantec prior to submittal to Commerce. Failure to identify the legal basis for each

Page 6 of 38

HFupon request from Commerce’s custodian of %




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
exemption from the requirements of chapter 119, F.S,, prior to submittal of the record to Commerce may serve
as a waiver of a claim of exemption. Grantee shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential
and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the
duration of this Agreement term and following completion of this Agreement if Grantee does not transfer the
records to Commerce upon tesmination of this Agreement.

) Grantee shall allow public access to all records made or received by Grantee
in conjunction with this Agreement, unless the records are exempt from s. 24(a) of Article I of the State
Constitution and s. 119.07(1), F5.. TFor records made or received by Grantee in conjunction with this
Agreement, Graniee shall respond to requests to inspect or copy such records in accordance with chapter 119,
F.S.

f) In addition to Grantee’s responsibility to directly respond to each requestit |
receives for records made or received by Grantee in conjunction with thi§zAgreement and to provide the
applicable public records in response to such request, Grantee shall notify Coifithirce of the receipt and content
of such request by sending an e-mail to PRRequesti@dec.anyflorida.corpf¥ithin one business day from receipt
of such request. e

Grantee shall notify Cornrneréé-, ‘i’g
in wtiting within 72 chronological hours if any dafa in G;»a.ntee’féﬂ possessi
subpoenaed or improperly used, copied, or removed (emept in thetordinary ¢
except an authorized representative of Commeree. Grm’fée shall caoperate with C
as Commerce deems advisable to prevent misuse, regﬁiit Eossesslon dd/or otherwise [
and the data subject’s privacy. S

h) IF GRANTEE Tk QUESTIONS REGARDING .
FLORIDA STATUTES, TO

hin 24 chronological hours and

lated to this Agreement is

of business) by anyone

iucrce in taking all steps

stect the State’s rights
"ﬂ,«u

,zaf‘%’ﬂ‘

THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT” ? i['HE CUQI' IAN OF PUBLIC
RECORDS by ' ég.t ‘ '0 via e-mail  at
PRRequest@deo.m

a

‘i}

of 5. 2;5 971(1), F.S:

Contractors may only expend funding under this

fom ohhgattons incurred during the term of this Agreement. To be
i omp]m.nce with laws, rules and reguhtmm apphmble to

agencies /referentamideforstitees Eﬁdumea df Grantee shall refund to Commerce any balance of
unobhg'lted funds \vFﬁggh has been fgdyanced or paid to Grantee.

Gﬁ:mtee shall refund to Commerce all funds paid in excess of the amount to
{Eics are entitled under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

which Grantee or its sub

7 Section 288,101, F.S.: Grantee shall: (a) construct or repair the state or local public
infrastructure that is the subject of this Apecement, as deseribed in Exhibit A, SCOPE OF WORK, in a manner -
that meets and complies with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, including but not limited
to, the requirements of s. 288,101, F.8,; (b} not use fuads provided under this Agreement for the exclusive
benefit of any single company, corporation, or business entity; () use funds provided under this Agreement
to promote economic recovery in specific regions of the state, economic diversification, or economic
enhancement in 4 targeted industry via the construction or repair of the public infrastructure; and {d) the public
infrastructure must be: (i) owned by the public, and be for public use or predominately benefit the public; and
(i) if the public infrastructure 1s leased or sold, it must be leased or sold at fair market rates or value.

Page 7 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G092
9. FINAL INVOICE: Grantee shall submit the final invoice for payment to Commerce no later than
60 calendar days after this Agreement ¢nds or is terminated. If Grantee fails to do so, Commerce, in its sole
and absolute discretion, may refuse to honor any requests submitted after this time period and may consider
Grantee to have forfeited any and all dghts to payment under this Agreement.

10. RECOUPMENT OF FUNDS:
a, Grantee shall refund to Commerce any overpayment of funds due to unearned or disallowed
funds under this Agreement as follows: (a} if Grantee or an independent auditor discovers an overpayment,
Grantee shall repay to Commerce such overpayment no later than 30 calendar days after discovery or
notification of each such overpayment; or (b) if Commerce first discovers an overpayment, Commerce shall
notify Grantee in writing, and Grantee shall repay to Commerce each such overpayment no later than 30
calendar days after receiving Commerce’s notification. Refunds should bessent to Commerce’s Agreement
Manager, and made payable to the “Department of Commerce.” Comsmeg ﬁﬁy charge interest at the lawful
rate of interest on the outstandmg balance beginning on the 31st ca.lendai' day after the date of notification or
discovery. Commerce is the final authority as to what may constttuteg@;l ‘gﬁf rpayment’” under this Agreement.
b. Notwithstanding any other provistons of this %grhemen ludmg but not limited to the
damages limitations of the LAWS APPLICABLE TO THIS MEMBNI%%
compliant with any provision of this Agreement or ap”pii'imble law, or if d&jﬁmerce imposes financial
consequences on Grantee pursuant to the terms of thi¥" Agreement, Commerce figgsthe right to recoup all
tesulting cost, monetary loss and/or funds owed to, & (fa i Om morues owed to
Grantee under this Agreement or any other Agreement b
of such noncompliance or 1mp081t10n of financial cons
Commerce or the State of Florida arises \\f;hen no monies are &

other Ag:eement between Grantee and anj/ S cnttty, Gr'mtee‘ 1) 11 pay Com.rnerce in full such cost, loss,

:W"g;_:rts p'lpt:‘;;s"*f,nnd recbi'd ; gludmg electronic srorage medﬂ, as they may rehte to
s of coﬁaﬁctmg audits"or examinations or m'tkmg excerpts or tmnscupuons

transactions to thc au

d. Grantee? ’\,]l: gglf.ﬁn all Grantee’s records, financial records, supporting documents, statistical
records, and any other dogifients (mclud.mg electronic storage media) pertinent to this Agreement in
accordance with the record fetention requirements of Part V of Exhibit B, AUDIT REQUIREMENTS. Upon
Comumerce’s request, Grantee shall cooperate with Commerce to facilitate the duplication and transfer of such
records or documents,

e, Grantee shall nclude the aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all
approved subrecipient subcontracts and assignments.
f. Within 60 calendar days of the close of Grantee’s fiscal year, on a yearly basis, Grantee shall

electronically submit a completed AUDIT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION (a version of this certification
is attached hereto as Exhibit C) to audit@deo.myflorida.com. Grantee’s timely submittal of one completed
AUDIT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION for each applicable fiscal year will fulfill this requirement within
allagreements (e.g., contracts, grants, memorandums of understanding, memorandums of agreement, economic
incentive award agreements, etc.) between Commerce and Geantee.

Page 8 of 38

sHon herein, if Grantee is non-




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
g Grantee shall () maintain all funds Grantee received pursnant to this Agreement in bank
accounts separate from its other operating or other special purposes accounts, or (i) expressly designate in
Grantee’s business records and accounting system, maintained in good faith and in the regular course of
business, that sach funds originated from this Agreement. Grantee shall not commingle the funds provided
under this Agreement with any other funds, projects, or programs. Commerce may, in its sole and absolute
discretion, disallow costs that result from purchases made with commingled funds.

12, EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION:
a.  E-Verfy is an Internet-based system that allows an employer, using information reported on an
employee’s Form [-9, Employment Eligibility Verification, to determine the eligibility of all new
employees hired to work in the United States. There is no charge to employers to use E-Verify. The
Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system can be found i
https:/ Swww.e-verify.gov

b. Inaccordance with section 448 095, F.S,, the State of Florida wﬁessly requires the following:

i, Every public employer, contractor, and subcontractor shall register with and use the E-Verify
system to verify the work authorization status of aJl new[y hjrcd employees. A public employer,
contiactor, o1 subcontractor may not enter into a contract uﬂle ach patty to the contract
registers with and uses the E-Verify system e

i Aoprivate employex shall, -1fter maldng an offer of cmployrnent \vlm:h has been accep ted bya .-

verify the employment eligibility of a contmumg employee hired before January 1, 2021,
However, if 2 person is a contract employee ILt"IJIlCd by a private employer the private
employer must verify the. em ee’s employment igibility upon the renewal or extension of
his or her contract.
¢ Ifan entity does not use E-Verify, the sntity sheﬂLenroll in the E%Vcnt;y system prior to hiring any new
employee or retaining "lny contract empl&zeru 1&&»@ geffective d:ﬂf@ﬁf this Agreement.
K’& a}

L

13, DUTY OF CON}IINUI

a. Prior tg’é:é{ecuuon
Com.merce s Agteement M‘dﬂ g all
ccedmgs | m%)lvmg Grantee (and each subconrmctor of Grantee).
Thereafte.t Gr@tgg has A contin ty &"ﬁg régptly isqlgsn all Proceedings upon cccurrence.

b S THIS Qf disclosuig; E\p!les s or Grantee’s subconiractor’s officess and directors
when anys Ifroceedmg relatés ¥n.the ofﬁt{“ﬁ ot director's husiness or financial activities. Details of settlements
that afé%gevented from discloé q;g? s ogthe settlement may be annotated as such.

c.‘",i:;: G, Grantee shall p
or affecting Gu;gntec s or Grante
State concern aﬁ&umentee s ability
Grantee shall prmﬁd@%to Commerc

bcontr‘tctor s business. If the existence of such Proceeding causes the
ir willingness to perform s Agreement, then upon Commerces request,
Agreement Manager all reasonable assurances that: () Grantee will be
able to perform this" A_greemcnt igrhccordance with its terms and conditions; and (i) Grantee and/or its
employees, agents, or sk ti‘btp;a_ r(s) have not and will not engage in conduct in performing services for
Commerce which is similarsii¥vhture to the eonduet alleged in such Proceeding,

e .

14. ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTS:

a. Grantee shall not assign, sublicense, or otherwise transfer its rights, dities, or obligations

under this Agreement, by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of Commerce, which

consent may be withheld in Commerce’s sole and absolute discretion. Any Grantee’s attempted assignment of

this Agreement or any of the rights hereunder in violation of this provision shall be void #f iuitle. Commerce

will at all times be entitled to assign or transfer its rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement to another
governmental entity in the State of Florida upon giving prior written notice of same to Grantec.

. Grantee shall be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred in fulfilling the
obligations of this Agreement. If Commerce permits Grantee to subcontract all or part of the work
contemplated under this Agreement, including entering into subcontracts with vendoss for services, Grantee
shall formalize all such subcontracts in documents containing all provisions appropriate and necessary to ensure

Page 9 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G092
subcontractor’s compliance with this Agreement and applicable state and federal law. Grantee shall be solely
liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilides incurred under each subcontract. 1€ the State of Florida
approves transfer of Grantee’s oblgatdons, Grantee remains responsible for all work performed and all
expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement. Grantee, at Grantee’s expense, shall defend Commerce
against all Grantee’s subcontractors’ claims of expenses or liabilities incurred under subcontracts.

c. Grantee shall only use propezly trained persons who meet or exceed any specified training
qualifications as employees, subcontractors, or agents performing work under this Agreement. Upon request,
Grantee shall furnish a copy of technical certification or other proof of qualification. All Grantee’s employees,
subcontractors, or agents performing work under this Agreement shall comply with all Commerce security and
administrative requirements detailed herein,. Commerce may conduct, and Grantee shall cooperare with all
security background checks or other assessments of Grantee’s employces subcontractors, of agents,
Commerce may tefuse access to or require replcement of any of Gr'mted?@ cemployees, subcontractors, or
agents for cause, including, but not imited to: technical o training qualtﬁg'ltlonﬁ; quality of work, clumge mn
security status, of non-compliance with Commerce’s security or adminlstmtlve requirements. Such refusal shall
not relieve Grantee of its obligation to perform all work in comy Lﬁiﬁcév\vlth this Agreement. For cause,
Cominerce may reject and bar any of Grantee’s employees, subc’cﬁg&g‘nctors‘,\éﬁg}gcnts from any facility.

d. This Agreement shall bind the suecessors, '1s§tgn And legal fEEfGSCﬂtﬂtiVCS of Grantee and of
any legal entity that succeeds to the obligations of the S}'lfe of Fldkida. The Seit e»of Florida may assign or

transfer its rights, duties, or obligations under this Agrc ent to angther govemmmf i Grantee in the State of !
Florida.

e In accordance with 5. 287.0585, F S andzunless other *'Q :
Grantee and subcontractor, Grantee shall pay each Gmnth&& sulgfsontﬂctor within -;eveﬁ Fworking days of
receiving Commeree’s full or partial pqymre,m‘s Grantee’s faili ’;to comply with the lmmedlately preceding -
sentence shall result in a penalty charged agiifst:Grantee and paid’ t@*tkhe subcontractor in the amount of one-

half of one percent of the amount due per d'iy Tty the expiration ofithe period allowed herein for payment. .-
2 nd shall nof: Sceed;15 percent of the outstanding -

Such penalty shall be in addition to actual p‘lyments it
balance due.

f Grantee bhﬂ]], 1de to Commcﬁée a M1 dge 'md Service-Disabled Veteran Business
Enterprise Report with eaqh Vo mmarizing tha articipation 'éf%emﬂed and non-certified minority and
service-disabled veterap; 'sg'hgpntmctotﬁ]’mateml suppligrs for that griod and the project to date. This report
shall include the names ﬁddﬂﬁ&;s and cgimpensation dolf‘s'i.t amount of each certified and non-certified Minority
Business Enterprise and Service € DisaBled: Veteran Enter}a};lse partcipant and shall be sent to Commerce's
Agreemcnt Magg.g iversity aty fBSO) 487-0915 is avaitable to provlde mforrmtlon

isin

15.  NONEXPENDABLE P @PER’I’Y

a. For p?.\.cposes of this Agreement, “nonexpendable property” is the same as “property” as
defined in 5. 273.02, R.S.) qarént, fixtures, and other tangible personal property of a non-consumable and
nonexpendable nature.)

b. All none‘cpendable propetty, purchased under this Agreement, shall be listed on the property
records of Grantee. Grantee shall inventory annuslly and maintain accounting records for all nonexpendable
property purchased and submit an inventory report to Commerce with the final expendimire report. The
records shall include, at a minimum, the following information: property tag identification number, description
of the item{s), physicat location, name, make or manufacturer, year, and/or model, manufacturer’s serial
number(s), date of acquisition, and the current conditton of the item,

c. At no time shall Grantee dispose of nonexpendable property purchased under this Agreement
without Commerce’s written permission; provided further that Grantec shall, at all times, follow Commesce’s
instructions regarding such disposition.

d. Immediately upon discovery, Graatee shall notify Commerce, in writing, of any property loss
with the date and reason(s) for the toss.

Page 10 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G092

c. Grantee shall be responsible for the correct use of all nonexpendable property Grantee
purchases or Commerce furnishes under this Agreement.

f. A formal Agreement amendment is required prior to the purchase of any item of
nonexpendable propesty not specifically listed in the approved Agreement budget.

g. Title (ownership) to all nonexpendable property acquired with funds from this Agreement
shall be vested in Commerce and said property shall be transferred to Commerce upon completion or
termination of this Agreement unless otherwise authorized in writing by Commerce.

16. REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PURCHASE OF OR IMPROVEMENTS TO
REAL PROPERTY: In accordance with s. 287.05805, F.S,, if funding provided under this Agreement is nsed
for the pu.tchasc of or improvements to teal property, Grantee shall grant Commerce a security interest in the
property in the amount of the funding provided by this Agreement for the pui*c;lﬂse of or improvements to the
real property for five years from the date of purchase or the completion @ e, improvements or as further
required by law. : *

17. INFORMATION RESOURCE ACQUISITION: ‘Giintee slfgll.\gbtmn prior written approval
from the appropriate Commerce authority before purcllasmg&@ a;Infurﬂ'mttoi‘l’th;cl'u'nolc;)gy Resource (ITR) or
conducting any activity that will impact Commerce’s clcctrgmc infrfation tech icigy equipment or software,
a3 both terms are defined in Commerce Policy Numbg§f5 01, in any way. ITR inchides computer hardware,
softwate, networks, devices, connertions, applicatiGn; ‘. ct the Commerce
Agreement Manager listed herein in writing for the contact: Somtferce authority
for any such ITR purchase approval.

8. INSURANCE: Dudng this Agt\‘q_gh“‘ent mcludmg thi tial Agreement term, renewal(s), and
extensions, Grantee, at its sole expense, shall’ mﬂfﬁfﬂm insurance cii\gé‘gage of such types and with such terms
and limits as may be re'lson'lb]y associated WitE;&tlus ﬁ@recmcnt atd furﬂ'r described below. Providing and
maintaining adequate insurance coverage is a migterial: 'dbhg’mon of Grifitée, and failure to maintain such
coverage may void this Agr ﬂ;‘;@ﬂ,t"}’lt Commerce’s: sb’lc and 5b§ te disctetion, after Commerce's review of
Grantee’s inswrance coveripe Wit rantee is endble to compl vy Jifh Commerce’s requests re: additional
appropriate and necessy isurance coy mage. The ]J.miQs of coverag#under cach policy maintained by Grantee
shall not be interpreted as 1 ing Giitee’s lizbility aqg obhg'mons under this Agreement. All insurance
polictes shall be through insuré §ilicens sand authorized 19 ypite policies in Florida.

ffhis Apre ggient Gra{%ﬁ’ée shall provide Commerce written verification of
each tfrpc}of '1ppl1c’1]§ §irance coverage. Within thirty (30) calendar days of
Shall furmsl:kCOrn.metc proof of applicable insurance coverage by standard
urer cancels any applicable coverage for any reason, Grantee
cellation and shall obtain adequate replacement coverage
: SN mdﬁrowde proof of such replacement coverage within fiftecn (15)
business days afégi.the cmcellado‘n {f coverage. The msurance certificate must name Commerce as an
additional insured eﬂtlfy Comm ree’s Agreement Number Coples of new insurance certificates must be

5:3
the Effcﬁnve Date, Gran
ACQWGIm certlﬁc'\tes of

ot p'ty for any insurance pohcy deducttblc The payment of each such
deductible shall be Grantec’s 4ibile responsibility. Grantee shall obtain the following types of insurance policies.

1) Cemmer(:lal General Liability Insurance: Unless Grantee is a state agency or
subdivision as defined by s. 768.28(2), F.S,, Grantee shall provide adequate commercial general Lability
insurance coverage and hold such lability insumnce at all times during this Agreement. A self-insurance
progiam established and operating under the laws of the State of Florida may provide such coverage.

2) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance: Grantee, at all
times during the term of this Agreement, at its soke expense, shall provide commercial insurance of such a type '
and with such terms and Jimits as may be reasonably associated with this Agreement, which, as a minimum,

shall be: workers’ compensation and employer’s liability insurance in accordance with chapter 440, B8, with -

minimum employes’s Tability limits of $100,000 per accident, $100,000 per person, and $500,000 policy -
aggregate. Such policy shall cover all employees engaged in any Agreement work. :

Page 11 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
3 Other Insurance: During the tesm of this Agreement, Grantee shall maintain any
othet insurance as required in Exhibit A, SCOPE OF WORK.,

19. CONFIDENTIALITY AND SAFEGUARDING INFORMATION:

a, Each Party may have access to confidential information made available by the other. The
provisions of the Florida Public Records Act, Chapter 119, F.S,, and other applicable state and federal laws will
govern disclosute of any confidential inforimation received by the State of Flodda,

b. . Grantee must implement procedures to ensure the appropriate protection and confidentiality
of all data, files, and records involved with this Agreement.
c. Except as necessary to fulfill the terms of this Agreement and with the written permission of

Commerce, Grantee shall not divulge to third parties any confidential information obtained by Grantee or its
agents, distributors, resellers, subcontractors, officers, or employees in the ‘Sgurse of performing Agreement
work, including, but not limited to, security procedures, business opemﬁ% sinformation, or commercial
proprietary information in the possession of the State or Commerce, -
Grantee shall not use or disclose any information cq;ic a recipient of services under this
Agreement for any purpose in conformity with state and federal l'ﬁg Or reg except upon written consent
of the tecipient, or his responsible parent ot puardian when auﬂig ed by laws v.ipp]lcable
e. When Grantee has access to Commerces network and/or -1ppheat10ns in order to fulfill
Grantee’s obligations under this Agreement, Grantee «sﬁa.ll abide by all apphcqb]é» jommerce Information
Technology Security procedures and policies. Gmt@.&? cluding its em loyees, subcoﬂéi‘a@ors, agents, or any
other individuals to whom Grantee exposes confidential if¥ @rmatmn oﬁ sined under this . Qz‘ﬁ’ént} shall not
stote, or allow to be stored, any confidential information on: i; iy pcfrmble}torage media (&7, laptops, thumb
drives, hard diives, ez) or pcﬂphcrﬂl d(,vic&‘}vith the capacity t:hold information. Failufé to strictly comply
with this provision shall constitute a breach ® eement,
f. Grantee shall immediately napgcgmmerce h wrifih
or rcpmsent'luvew become aware of an ind vert e vaclmure of erce’s unsecured confidential
information in violation of the terms of this A‘g-reemg“ﬂlf“» rantee sh Féport to Commerce any Security
Inctdentb of wl'uch it becomeg including mci‘déhts sub- ébﬁ}ggctors ot agents reported to Grantee. For
o ncidens” me'ms the attemptq&’mr successful unauthorized access, use,
of Commer@ mformaum( in Grantee’s possession or electronic
15; provided, ht)\\}ﬁver that random attempts at access shall not be
t : *‘hall make a tepoﬂ; IobaCommerce not more than seven busmess days

hen Grantee, its employees, agents,

disclosure mod.iﬁcatu%g;%
interference with Commerc
considered a secunty inciden
after Grantee, lea¥tis

ﬁ’gentt'll information used or dlsclosed (iif} who made
sute, (v} what Grantee has done or shall do to mitigate
disclosure and {v) what corrective action Grantee has taken

mfo:matlon ingluding a written repet, as Cotmmerce’s Information Secuﬂty Mm'lger requesrs

g. ) 4 breach of séﬁlnty concerning confidential personal information involved with this
Agreement occurs, ‘Girantee sh't]] 4 ;ﬁp]y with 5. 501.171, F.8,, as apphcnble When nouﬁcanon to affected
persons is requu:ed
receipt of Commerce’s Wi i -qpptoval of the contents of thc notice. For purposes of this Agret:ment “bteach
of security” or “breach” fis the unanthorized access of data in electronic form containing personal
information, as defined ins§ 501.171, (1)), FS.. Good faith acquisition of personal information by an
employee or agent of Grantee is not a breach, provided the information is not used for a purpose unrelated to
Grantee’s obligations under this Agreement ot is not subject to further unauthorized use.

20, WARRANTY OF ABILITY TO PERFORM; Grantee warrants that, to the best of its knowledge,
there is no pending or threatened action, proceeding, or investigation, or any other legal or financial condition,
that would in any way prohibit, restrain, or diminish Grantee’s ability to satisfy its Agreement obligations.
Grantee shall immediately notify Commerce in wiiting if its ability to perform is compromised in any manner
during the term of this Agreement.

21. PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND ROYALTIES:

Page 12 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

a, All lepal title and every right, interest, claim or demand of any kind, in and to any patent,
teademark or copyright, or application for the same, or any other intellectunl property right to, the work
developed or produced under or in connection with this Agreement, is the exclusive property of Commerce to
he granted to and vested in the Florida Department of State for the use and benefit of the state; and no person,
firm ot corporation shall be entitled to use the same without the written consent of the Florida Department of
State. Any contribution by Grantee or its employees, agents or contractors to the creation of such works shall
be considered wotks made for hire by Grantee for Commerce and, upon creation, shall be owned exclusively
by Commerce. To the extent that any such works may not be considered works made for hire for Commerce
under applicable law, Grantee agrees, upen creation of such works, to automatically assign to Commerce
ownership, including copyright interests and any other intellectual propesty rights therein, without the necessity
of any further consideration,

b. If any discovery or invention arses or is developed in the’ gourse or as a result of work oz
services petformed with funds from this Agreement, Grantee shall ret‘ “ihe discovery or invention to
Commerce who will refer it to the Department of State to determine \vhe her patent protection will be sought
in the name of the State of Florida. .

c. Where activities supported by this Agreement ﬁjﬁ@%uce optgmﬂ.l wiitings, sound recordings,
pictorial reprodoctions, drawings or other graphic represent*@ﬁils d works oﬁ’»any similar nature, Commerce
has the right to use, duplicate, and disclose such m‘Ltetﬂls,m “wholie Gt in pact, in Al manner, for any purpose
whatsoever and to allow others acting on behalf of Comj‘herce to do so. Grantee sh'?t]]“nge Commerce written
notice when any books, maruals, films, websites, weby éiements, elecl:romc information; 1,\;&1'.11&{ copyrightable

materials are produced. & “*

d. Notwithstanding any other provisions heté ln,,/‘fCCOIdaHEC with 8. 1Q0; 23 E.5., a state
universily is authorized in its own name tojperform all things fiegesgary to secure letters of‘patem copyrq,hts
and trademarks on any works it produces. E{ﬂ:ﬁ;gx 30 calendar dqys'(;)f same, the president of a state university
shall report to the Depattment of State any su %s action takgi} to secure ot exploit such trademarks,

copyrights, ot patents in accordance with s. 10 4 23 ,\,:‘:‘:v_%‘:,m

m, N»

22, INDEPEN'DENT..(«;@NTRACTOR S’(IE»ATUS &matec% performance of its duties and
responsibilities under this; Agi-ééiﬁéhﬁ it is mutvally Hinderstood a’r’?ﬁingreed that Grantee is at all Gmes acting
and performing as an mdeps:ndent Contracior. Comigerce shalt, Aieither have nor exercise any control ot

direction over the meﬂlods-bg«which ‘t@’mautee shall perfgfm its work and functions other than as provided

herein. r,»:'«;~, ;K»E'iw - %,

a. yp[:lmg in tlns A‘grﬁ;emcff ““ig.ﬁ;gndcd to‘at)r shafl be deemed to constitute a pactnership or
joint ventuegetweeirilie Pagties. ‘*3:3}3%, v;jf«,’

P Except Guantegizis a staté” apency, Grantee, its officers, agents, employees,

subcgnqup;ors, or assignees, ﬁpig;:rformaﬁ sgqféns Agreement shall act in the capacity of an independent
contractor i not as an officer; ngloyee, nt of the State of Florida. Nor shall Grantee represent to
others that, as'irantee, it has the auﬂlouty te*bind Commerce unless spectﬁcqlly authorized to do so.

<. K GEpt where G t,ge is a state agency, neither Grantee, nor its officess, agents, employees,
subconteactoss, or 'fsslgglees are enuf qd to state retirernent or state leave benefits, or to any other compensation
of state employment as"‘;‘:ttsult of pgiforming the duties and obligations of this Agreement.

d, Gf'mtee’? tgkt' such actions as may be necessary to ensure that each subcontractor will be
deemed o be an indepen yﬁ‘kfontmcto: and will not be considered or permitted to be an agent, employec,
joint venturer, or partner off tI{c State of Florida.

e Unless justified by Grantee, and agreed to by Commerce in Exhibit A, SCOPE OF WORK,
Commerce will not furnish services of support (g, office space, office supplies, telephone service, secretarial,
or clerieal supporg) to Grantee ox its subcontractor or assignee.

f. Commerce shall not be responsible for withholding taxes with respect to Grantee’s
compensation hereunder. Grantee shall have no claim against Commerce for vacation pay, sick leave,
retirement benefits, social security, workers’ compensation, health or disability benefits, reemployment
assistance benefits, or employee henefits of any kind.  Grantee shall easure that its employees, subcontractors,
and other agents, recetve benefits and necessary insurance (health, workers” compensation, reemployment
assistance benefirs) from an employer other than the State of Florida.

Page 13 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
g At all times during this Agreement, Grantee shall comply with the reporting and
Reemployment Assistance contribution payment requirements of chapter 443, F.S.

23 ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER: Within 30 calendar days of the date the last Party has signed
this Agreement, Grantee shall enroll in Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) from the State’s Chief Financial
Officer. Copies of the Authotization form and a sample blank enrollment letter can be found on the vendor

instruction page at: hetps:/ /wwivanyfloridacfo.com/Division/AA /Vendors/. Questions should be directed

to the EFT Section at (850) 413-5517. Once enrolled, EFT shall make invoice payments.

24. MODIFICATION: If, in Commerce’s sole and absolute determination, ch'mges to this Agreement
are necessitated by law or otherwise, Commerce may at any time, with written notice of all such changes to
Grantee, modify this Agreement within its original scope and purpose. Grap,tee shall be responsible for any
due diligence necessary to determine the impact of the modification. Any ’ﬂ&hgtﬂcatmn of this Agreement
Grantee requested must be in writing and duly signed by all Parties in ogdér to be énforcenble.

25. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: Time is of the %’Ss%ihce regfg ing Grantee’s performance of
obligations set forth in this Agreément. Any additional de'ld]iﬂés f%.): perfornian e - for Grantee’s obligation to
timely provide deliverables under this Agreement mclud.mg ‘But nist Timited to tritly, submittal of reports, are
contained in Exhibit A, SCOPE OF WORK, and shall b strictly construed.

26. CONSTRUCTION; INTERPRETATION. title of

this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and 5:& notggovem or affect the ing tpretation of any
of the terms ot provisions of this Agreeme*%t,, The term “this A; ement means this Agreement together with
all Exhibits hereto, as the same may from ﬁ'@ﬁjg« 10 time be amen &' modified, supplemented, or restated in
accordance with the terms hereof. The use ”igl Tlﬁ&;‘ﬁgreement of thigiterm mcludmg‘ and other words of
similar import mean “ircheding, without limitation® qﬁ’a{ﬁ;hgre specific ageis used to clarify by emmple a
general statement contained herein, such speclﬁcdﬂngugﬁ‘ h $d to modify, hrmt or restrict in. .
any manner the constmct:on,;:u? ] ncral strltemeuﬁto whichii:

'my p'\rtlcuhr section, subgéction, paragraph, subparagraph, or Cl‘lu.SB
r|:1_n of terms lmporting the singular shall also include the plueal, and
trument ot &ther document méans such agreement, instrument,
d od1ﬁ§'tf from time to time to the extent pcrm(tl:ed by the

and m;];‘? ations p. mu[g'tted thereunder All references to “$” shall mean
Stdtes dollars. The reCiEgE of this %ﬁeement are incorporated herein by reference and shall apply to
the terms a5d, provisions of thi Agrccmenﬁ'siﬁ'd the Parties, The Parties have participated jointly in the
negotiation and:drafting of this Agrdement. #n the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation
arises, this Agr 1t shall be cons&@ed as if drafted jointly by the Parties, and no presumption or burden of
proof shalk arise g or disfavosi inig any Party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this

Agreement.

27. TERMINATIO ommerce may terminate this Agreement if:

a. Commercgidetermines in its sole and absolute discretion that it is in the State’s interest to do
50;

b. Grantee breaches any of its representations, warranties, covenants, or other obligations in this
Agreement in any material respect;

c. Grantee or any of its employees ot agents commits fraud or willful misconduct in connection
with this Agreement, the Proposal, or the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby;

d. Funds t6 finance this Agreement become unavailable or if federal or state funds upon which

this Agreement is dependent are withdrawn or redire¢ted, Commerce may terminate this Agreement upon no
less than 24-hour written notice to Grantee. Commerce shall be the final authority as to the availability of
funds. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this provision, Grantee will be paid for any work
satisfactorily completed prior to notification of termination;

Page 14 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

e Grantee institutes or consents to the institution of any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding,
or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or applies for or consents to the appointment of any
receiver, trustee, custodian, conservator, liquidator, rehabilitator, or similar officer for it or for all or any material
part of its property; or any receiver, trustee, custodian, conservator, liquidator, rehabilitator, or similar officer
is appointed without the application or consent of such person ot entity and the appointment continnes
undischarged or unstayed for sixty (60) calendar days; or any bankruptey or insolvency proceeding relating to
Grantee or to all or any material part of its propesty s instituted without the consent of Grantee and Grantee
fails to challenge such proceeding or such proceeding is challenged but continues undismissed or unstayed for
sixty (60} calendar days, or an order for relief is entered in any such proceeding;

Grantee becomes unable to o admits in writing its inability to or fails generally to pay itz debts
as they become due, or any writ or wartant of attachnent or execution or similar process is issued or levied
against all or any matedial pact of the property of Grantee or Grantee other\\fﬁgbecomes insolvent; or

g A prepondecance of evidence that Grantee is not proqg;gﬁl with the Project, including,
without Hmitation, a decision by Grantee not to proceed with the Project; cludmg upon receipt by Commerce
of Grantee’s written request to terminate this Agreement {a. through g ively, the “Termination Events™).

k. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement | €65 gﬁ% contrigy;if Commerce exercises its right
to terminate this Agreement as the result of the occurtencé’o 'Termm}i gm Bvent, any reimbursement
payments that have not been disbursed to Grantee, mcludmg anypiyment that 'I§»Ja-een authotized and not
yet disbursed, shall be immediately forfeited and Gra.ntee shall return funds \vui}ﬁi?‘\xtlmty (30) days of the
termination of this Agreement. All worl in progrcss»”on'vFloﬂd'l Depqrtrncnt of Tr'msp ctation right-of-way
will become the property of the Florida Department of 4 (‘I{rgnsportfltloﬁwgnd will be mmé’éﬁ Q:\ié}’ promptly by
Grantee, The rights and remedies of Commerce in this clause’s mdd.moh to any other #iEhts and remedies
provided by law or under this Agteement. \,&gﬂntee shall not 11 any product after it réceives the notice of
termination, except as Commerce speclﬁc Finstructs Grantee iting. Grantee shall not be cnmlcd to
recover any cancellation charges or lost profi

28, DISPUTE RESOLUTION: Unless ofllerwisd a‘tﬁteqs,gn Exhibit AZSCOPE OF WORK, Commerce
shall decide disputes collccrulngem%Eerfomance o*fxﬂils Agreémgnt, and Gommerce shall serve written notice
of same to Grantee Con;tmerce $*détision shall be final and comﬂuﬁw{: unless within 21 calendar days from
ymmerce 2 petition for 'ld.mmfstﬂuve hearing. Commerce’s final order
y right of Grarh:ge to judicial review pursuant to chapter 120.68, F.S.
'1bsolute cond.mon prccedent to Grantee's ab:hty to pursue any

768. 28{2)%- pussuant to s. 768 3(19), F. ther Party indemnifies nor insures o assumes any liability for
the other P'Lrt'f(”fm the other Party §mghgenc )

a "Gi:a_ntec shall be fulls Jlable for the actions of its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors
and shall fully mden'mi defend, a ‘@,hold harmless the State and Commerce, and their officers, agents, and
cmployees, from sui Actions, d'lm’tges and costs of every name and deseription, including attorneys’ fees,
qﬂsmg from or relating tdﬁ ; H@T*m]ury and damage to real or personal tangible property alleged to be caused
in whole or in part by Gr:i"i;. &, its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors; provided, however, that
Grantee shall not indemnify; defend, and hold harmless the State and Commerce, and their officers, agents,
and employees for that portion of any loss or damages the negligent act or omission of Commerce or the State
proximately caused.

b. Further, Grantee shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State and Commerce
from any suits, actions, damages, and costs of every name and description, including attorneys’ fees, atising
from or relating to violation or infringement of a trademark, copyright, patent, trade secret or intellectual
property right; provided, however, that the foregoing obligation shall not apply to Commerce’s misuse or
modification of Grantee’s products or Commerce’s operation ot use of Grantee’s products in a manner not
contemplated by this Agreement. If any product is the subject of an infringement suit, or in Grantee’s opinion
is likely to become the subject of such a suit, Grantee may, at Grantee’s sole expense, procure for Commerce
the right to continue using the product or to modify it to become non-infringing. If Grantee is not reasonably

Page 15 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G092
able to modify or otherwise secure for Commerce the right to continue using the product, Grantee shall reiove
the product and refund Commerce the amounts patd in excess of a reasonable fee, as determined by Commerce
in its sole and absolute discretion, for past use. Commerce shall not be liable for any royalties.

c. Grantee’s obligations under the two immediately preceding paragraphs above, with respect to
any legal action are contingent upon the State or Commerce giving Grantee (1) written notice of any action or
threatened action, (2} the opportunity to take over and settle or defend any such action at Grantee’s sole
expense, and (3) assistance in defending the action at Grantee’s sole expense. Grantee shall not be liable for
any cost, expense, or compromise incurred or made by the State or Commerce in any legal action without
Grantee’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

d, Grantee expressly assumes any and all Hability for payment to its agents, employees,
contractoss, subcontractors, consultants, and subconsultants, as ‘lpp].‘lC"lblC and shall mdemnify and hold
Commeree harmless from any suits, actions, damages, and costs of every; ’ﬁame and description, including
attorneys’ fees, anising from or relating to any dental or reduction of mkkﬁ%,{gc submitted by Grantee to
Commerce for reimbursement for costs under this Agreement whercv‘éommt:rce is imposing the financial
consequences stated herein. e C’quiv

e, Grantee shall carry or cause its contractor/ 5ubcbq;§actorﬁ ,n_sultant/ subconsultant to carry
and keep in force Workets Compensation insurance as recluﬁ:ﬂd ﬁ;;r the Sta e!"r;&f Florida under the Worker's
Compensation Law. o

P T

f. Grantee shall include the followin 'fmdemmﬁcgtuon in all coﬁt?—acts with contmctors,

“The contractor/subcontractor/ consultant/ subcon% ]gt ;

hold harmless the Florida Depa:tment of Commetcgiand all of its officers; y agc,nta or
employees from alf suits, actions, ¢ hﬁﬁas,bdmnmds habl[ﬁz}’,of any nature wlmtsocvcr 'msmg
out of, because of, or due to any ncghghﬁgﬂct or occurtenceagi,f omission Or comenission of
the contractor/subcontractor/ cunsulta.nt/ sgb“é’ﬂz’g%ssgltant its ofH W§;/1gents or employees.”]

£

30. LIMITATION 0F‘*‘L‘IABILI’I'Y I"or‘g!] claims "4 against Grantec under this Agreement, and
regardless of the basis on \v}?ici] t"he«;lﬁjm is made, G‘rqntee habﬂft’y!,ixfﬁder this Agreement for direct damages
shall be limited to the &tééfe; of $‘100 QQO or the dolli, ,amount ofthis Agreement. This limitation shall not
apply to claims arising un 634116 N EMNII'ICATI@N Section of this Agreement. Unless otherwise
specifically enumeﬂted in th:s%grecp’lg@»g; in the purchaas* order, no Party shalt be Hable to another for
special, mdchcQP iHitive, Or conseg ipnt ”@%;1 2cs, mclu g lost data or records (unless this Agreement or
pu:clﬂse ql:dé’i" }éilﬁ;réﬁg@mntee to gek-up dat %f«ﬁgﬁbrds), even if the Party has been advised that such
da.mages; fte possible. N I’arl:y shall” B’E*hable for [oat profits, lost revenue, or lost institutional operating
sawngém‘g:he State and Comstigite gige may, m.q% jon to other remedies available to them at law or equity and

upon noticédh Grantee, retain suq momes febimounts due Grantee as may be necessary to satisfy any claim
for damages,” eg'ljues costs and & iﬁ like asgerted by or agamst them. The State may set off any liability or
other obligation’ af.ﬁmntee orits affi iates to the State against any payments due Grantee under any Agreement
with the State. i, x;g;;?

: Q‘”

3L PRESERVATI'@N QE?ﬁREMEDIES SEVERABILITY; RIGHT TO SET-OFF. No delay or
omission to exercise any r:gl'i:f: power ot remedy accruing to eithet Patty upon breach ot defanlt by either Party
under this Agreement, willé *Impm any such right, power, or remedy of either Party; nor will such delay or
omission be construed as a waiver of any breach or default or any similar breach or default. 1€ any term or
provision of this Agreement is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such term or provision will be
deemed stricken, and the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect. Commerce and the
State shall have all of its common law, equitable and statutory rights of set-off, including, without limitation,
the State’s option to withhold for the purposes of set-off any moneys due to Grantee under this Agreement up
to any amounts due and owing to Commerce with respect to this Agreement, any other contract with any State
department or agency, including any contract for 4 term commencing prior to the term of this Agreement, plus
any amounts due and owing to the State for any other reason. The State shall exercise its set-off rights in
accordance with normal State practices including, in cases of set-off pursuant to an audit, the finalization of
such audit by the State or its representatives.

Page 16 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

32, FORCE MAJEURE AND NOTICE OF DELAY FROM FORCE MAJEURE: Neither Party
shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to perform under this Agreement if such delay or failure is
neither the fault nor the negligence of the Party o its employees or agents and the delay is due directly to acts
of God, wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, or other similar cause wholly beyond the Party’s
control, or for any of the foregoing that affects subcontractors or suppliers if no alternate source of supply is
available. However, if a delay results from the foregoing causes, the Party shall take all reasonable measures to
mitigate any and all resulting delay or distuption in the Party’s performance obligation under this Agreement.
If the delay is excusable under this FORCE MAJEURE AND NOTICE OF DELAY FROM FORCE
MAJEURE Section, the delay will not result in any additional chatge or cost under this Agreement to either
Party. In the case of any delay Grantee believes is excusable under this FORCE MAJEURE AND NOTICE
OF DELAY FROM FORCE MAJEURE Section, Grantee shall notify Cofmpcrcc in writing of the delay or
potential delay and describe the cause of the delay either: (1) within 10 cﬂcndﬁfr da,ys after the cause that creates
or will create the delay first arose, if Grantee could reasonably foresce, thnt a delay could occur as a resul; or -
(2) within five calendar days after the date Grantee first had reason.; té"hehevc that a delay could result, if the
delay is not reasonably foreseeable. THE FOREGOING SHAT: ITUTE GRANTEE'S SOLE
REMEDY OR EXCUSE WITH RESPECT TO DEIA® owdmg noticgia strict accordance with this
FORCE MAJEURE AND NOTICE OF DELAY F&@M FORCE MAJEHI Scctlon is a condition
precedent to such remedy. Commerce, in its sole discrg ﬁbn will determine if the detg };‘15 excusable under this
FORCE MAJEURE AND NOTICE OF DELAY ERBHMFORCE MA BURE Sectiofiiid will notify Grantee
of its decision in writing. No claim for dnmages other ﬁfiﬁfor #n ex(giigion of time, sh’;ﬁlb ¥serted against
Commerce. Grantee shall not be entitled to an increase in ﬂﬁ i .eEment price or paymenﬁ f any kind from
Commerce for direct, indirect, consequem?jal nnpact or othes sts, expenses or dumagés, including but not
limited to costs of acceleration or inefficien Q,t;g:mg because of ¢ del disruption, interference, or hindrance
from any cause whatsoever. [If performanceis E’usps;:ndcd or delflyeg" whole or in part, due to any of the
causes described in this FORCE MAJEURESANDFROTICE OF BB JFROM FORCE MAJEURE
Section, after the causes have ceased to exist, Glgntegghhﬂ Qrform at eased cost, unless Commerce
determines, in its sole discgeti hat the delay’ “xy{ﬂ[ signiftca 1m alé the value of this Agreement to
Commerce or the State, iriWhich® asbf, Commerce 1 may do s ‘my of f%f the following: (1) accept allocated
petformance or dchveg_ 11 Gr'tnts;@!, provided, th'ij; Graatee gﬁnts preferential treatment to Commerce
with respect to products or & gﬁa’i,ces subJected to allocatign; (2) purchase from other sources (\v:thout recourse -
to and by Grantee for the relafi v;;ostsv}md«e\ enses) to reE,lgce all or part of the products or services that are
the subject of 4 Q‘Z[\ e]gér xvluch pui'q'l;g es (i dcducted Fom this Agreesent quantity; or (3) terminate this
Agreemeng»m*\\i 131(: “OrLT ﬁgg;r

AMENDMENT; WAIVER. This Agfeement embodies the entre
agreement of the Particgivith reapeét to the submct matier hereof, There are no provisions, terms, conditions,
or cbligations other than:; gontained in this Agreement; and this Agreement supersedes all previous
commumcanons, representatigns, or agreements, cither verbal or written, between the Pasties. Excluding the
specific provisions of Sectigh 24, MODIFICATIONS, hereinabove allowing Commerce in Commerce's sole
and absolute determination to make unifateral changes to this Agreement, no amendment will be effective
unless reduced to writing and signed by an authorized officer of Grantee and the authorized agent of
Commerce. No waiver by a Party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effeetive unless explicitly set forth
it writing and signed by the Party so waiving, No waiver by any Party shall operate or be constzued as a waiver

in respect of any failure, breach or default not expressly identified by such wiitter waiver, whether of a similar ::°

or different character, and whether occurring before or after that waiver. No failure to exereise, or delay in
exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as .
a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exerdise of any rght, remedy, power or privilege hereunder .
preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power oz privilege.

Page 17 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
35. AUTHORITY OF GRANTEE’S SIGNATORY: Upcn execution, Grantee shall return the
executed copies of this Agreement in accordance with the istructions Commerce provided along with

documentation confirming and certifying that the below signatory has authority to bind Grantee to this '

Agreement as of the date of executton. Such documentation may be in the form of a legal opinion from
Grantee’s attorney, Grantee’s Certificate of Status, Grantee’s resolutions specifically authorizing the below
signatory to cxecute this Agreement, Grantee’s certificates of incumbency, and any other reliable
documentation demonstrating such authority, which shall be incotporated by reference into this
Agreement. Commerce may, at its sole and ahsolute discretion, request additional documentation related to
the below signatory’s authority to bind Grantee to this Agreement.

36. COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement and amendments to this Agreement may be executed in
cournterparts, each of which shall be an orginal and all of which shall constitijte one and the same instrument.
s

37 CONTACT INFORMATION AND NOTICES:

a. Except as othenwise specifically provided in this Agreﬁ‘ﬁag , the contact information provided
in accordance with this section shall be used by the Parties fdﬂ%ﬁlf comit glcar.ions under this Agreement.
Where the term “written notice” is used to specify a notice rﬂ,qlilre?nent hereirics id notice shall be deemed to
have been given (1) when personally delivered; {ii} when tr;msrmttéd S facsimi ﬁ ) confirmation of rcce1pt
or email with confirmation of rccelpt if the sender on t.ljg same day gends a conﬁnnixj,g';copy of such notice by
a recognized overnight delivery service (charges p:epafa); (511.1) the d"Ly fo]lmvmg the day (eS{cept if not a business
day then the next business day) on which the same has beeﬁvdphvcred pt,ﬁﬁ)md to a recognizedipyédnight delivery
service; or {iv) the third business day followmg the day on wi ﬁs?l thQﬁémc 15°sent by certifieddr registered mail,
postage prepaid, with return receipt. & -

b. If any mformmon ptovtde‘ﬂ‘?‘}ierem changes, 1nau’dmg the designation of a new Agreement -

i i i.change will notify all other Parties in

this Agreement.

‘Grantee’s Payee: reement Manager:

| Seth La\‘?}%ﬁé‘

City of Monticello )
245§ Mulberry - 1,245 § Mullygry
Monticello, FL Menticello, FL

Pligng? 850-342-8005
.. | EsAail: Seth Lawless(mymonticello.net

Phone: 850-342-8005
FEIN: 59-600037¢

Commg e's Agreement
Adaffi’] Tadlinger, FCCM
107 E Madgison St, MSC-80
Tallahassee, HI:32399
Phone: 850-71728087

Email: adam. madhnﬁ_ﬁ;@commerc‘é{ﬂ gov

g

[The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.]

Page 18 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and in the exhibits
attached hereto and incorporated herein, the Parties duly-nuthosized officials sign this Agreement.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE CITY OF MONTICELLO
By By
Signature Signature
J. Alex Eelly
Title Secretary Title
Date Date

e
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency, subject only
to full and proper execution by the Parties. i

OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

By:

Approved Date:

Page 19 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
Exhibit A
SCOPE OF WORK

1 PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Section 288.101, Florida Statutes (“F.5.7), established the Florida Job
Growth Grant Fund (the “Program™) to promote economic opportunity by improving public infrastructure
and enhancing wortkforce training. Funds provided pursuant to this Agreement must be used to support State
or local public infrastructure projects that promote economic recovery in specific regions of the state, economic
diversification, or economic enhancement in a targeted industry.

Grantee has been awarded $4,210,000.00 for the desipn, permitting, and construction of a wastewater treatment
facility, including a package plant and related infrastructure, at the 1 10 / 8R59 interchange (the Project). The
Project proposes to create 538 jobs and will be situated on land leased to theiGrantee, with the Grantee being
the sole lessee. The Grantee will be solely responsible for the constructig_ﬁran(%l\ evelopment of the Project.
The Project, including all , equipment, buildings, and related in&astruct%p:::_é‘ will be owned by the Grantee. The
lease will not hold the Grantee responsible for any maintenance of pgﬁ?’iﬁi\;ﬁm installations built upen the land,
and the lease term will not o exceed the eatlier of the date on whig

JEhe sewetiystem becomes environmentally
and economically reasonable for forced main service, or, thq,@q@of the us
12 years whichever first ocours. SN

ife of the package plant, or .

2, GRANTEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES:

a. COMMENCEMENT AND TIMELINE.
1) The Parties’ execution of this z&ﬁgeement shall be f
design phase of the Project whic 1:{1%@;&}1& delineated ‘i

C hal imburse Grantee:

2) Prior to commencing the constructic;”n;\vo&lﬁf:ﬁ’es’ié‘;l;g;d in this )’g’ﬁ”ﬁ'ément, Grantee shall:
greement Mandgét one coplthe final signed and sealed design plans,
5 i i

s, final bid dotyments, and copy’ 3F executed lease; and

signed and seale%ff;fjé
- R_equest ftom‘:@@{;&&lerc
hall noticei

Kt

Oty
the Notice to Procee
P roject SHALE formﬁiﬂ;(;"
hal < pletgdion or béqu%Qle Aftiniiversary of the Effective Date (the “Completion Date”),
”y,ﬂivﬁless terminatecf{}é,@ggr. Cofﬁﬁ%&\&ushal e the immediate right to terminate this Agreement if

ree
o . W "ledel, . .
‘:;:E:J:fgaggntee fails to cnmmgii.;cig the ccﬁi;g“;_ ction of the Project by the Commencement Date or complete

¥
ﬁé‘i%yApril 6, 2022 (the “Commencement Date”), and

g

2

\v%;':l_g:by the Expirationate and, Mi¥Ach case, provide evidence of the same to Comimerce upen
Comijgrce’s request to Ct):ﬁimercc’séé’ﬁtisfacﬁon. If construction in connection with the Project does

years of the date of the Effective Date, Commerce may immediately

terminate thig:Agreement.

4) Notwithstiading anythifig i this Agreement to the contrary, any funds not expended under this

Agrecment byéjugé 30,2024:shall be forfeited and shall revert back to Commerce, |
Thisis o

b. DESIGN, PERMITS, APPROVALS, AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS.

1) Gmntee shall undertake the design, constmction, and Consultant Construction Engineering
Inspection (“CCEP} of the Project in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local statutes,
rules and regulations, including any other applicable standards and specifications, A professional
engineer, registered in Florida, shall provide the certification that all design and constraction for the
Project meets the minimum construction standards established by Grantee.

2) Grantee shall cestify to Commerce that Grantee’s design consultant and /or construction contractor
has secured the necessary peemits, including but not imited to, building permits. Grantee shall provide
to Commerce certification and a copy of appropriate documentation substantiating that all required
right-of-way necessary for the Project have been obtained. If Grantee fails to provide each required °

Page 20 of 38

ented [WS1]:

ble'to be adjuss




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
certification to Commerce on or before the Commencement Date, Commerce may, in its sole and
absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement.

3) Grantee shall provide to Commerce its written notification of either its intent to:

4 Award the construction of the Project to a licensed contractor which is the lowest, responsive,
and responsible bidder in accordace with applicable state and federal statutes, rules, and
regulations. Grantee shall then submit a copy of the bid tally sheet(s) and awarded bid
contract; or

b) Construct the Project udlizing existing Grantee employees, whose qualifications have been
reviewed and approved by Commerce, if Grantee can complete said Project within the time
frame delineated in Section 1 of this Agreement,

4) If the Project is procured pursuant ro Chapter 255 for construction services and at the time of the
competitive solicitation for the Project fifty percent (50%) or morcfig?; the cost of the Project is to be
paid from state-approptiated funds, then Grantee must comply #ithithe requirements of Sections
255.0991 and 255.0092, F.S. -
5) Grantee is responsible for the preparation of all design 3} ZFor the Project. Grantee shall hire 2
qualified consultant for the design phasc of the Prd@t using¥Grantee’s normal procurement
dures to perform the design services for the Pegiéct. R
proce perto gn SAIREL o
6} Grantee shall hire a licensed contractor usingGrantée’s nosmal bid
construction work for the Project. - :
7) Grantee shall hire a qualified CCEI to perfotn constméﬁgn oversight inclijding the obligation to
assure that all verification testing is pecformed in's ceordance ggéﬂg,ﬁwhen applicablézha2014 Standard
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, #amended frém time to timei:*Commerce shall
have the right, but not the obligation, to perform in dent assurance testing Quring construction
of the Project. The CCEI firm mﬁ% e the same fi hat of the Engineer of Record for the
Project. "‘;: 2
8) Grantee shall require Grantee’s con't_gacto%?ﬁgp,p,vst a paymen
with Section 337.18(1), Florida Starutes. %, 5
9) Grantee shall cargitirequire its conteattt/ subco tastor/ cpﬁ:éultant/ subconsultant to catry and
keep in force dusig the pesad of this Agresment a general:ii iility insurance policy or policies with a
company or cgﬁﬁi%es authc"iéi‘z”cd to do busi}i&ss in Florids, affording public hability insurance with
combined bodily infjugy, limits GF at least $100,000 per person and $300,000 for each occourrence, and
property damage insuring t $100,000 fd&fijggch occutrence, for the services to be rendered in
accog%@%ﬁ_ﬁg@;}ﬂ?is Agrd : _!c]i on to angother forms of insutance or bonds required under
thesterins of Hiis‘.,i% emen’f’,%ih%n it inc]ﬁd’@,&fi“@@ﬁ%&u‘cdon within the limits of a railtoad right-of-way,
irantee must provid ’a{ cause’ft_ﬁggntmctorﬂﬁb'ptovide insurance coverage in accordance with Section
3 of FDOT’s Standig ;Speciﬁ?f?i@" s for Road and Bridge Construction (2014), as amended.
antee shall be respnsible forisrisuring that the construction work under this Agreement is
performed in accordancesigith the ﬁ%proved construction documents, and that it meets any other
applicablgzstandards.,
1) Gran ‘3”135{1] expend f;l:lw
for the purpdvsﬁf‘;w,ggx the appg;ﬁ“ved Project. Grantee shall not use the funds for the purchase or planting
of any ]andscapi:”}i%i_gigaﬁ’dh, the installation or relocation of utilities, for any legal action against the
State or Commerc costs associated with preparation of the Praposal.
12) Upon complegitn of the work authorized by this Agreement, Grantee shall notify Comimerce in
writing of the completion of construction of the Project; and for all design work that orginally required
certification by a Professional Engincer, this notification shall contain an lingineers Certification of
Compliance, signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer, the form of which is attzched hereto as
Exhibit . ‘The certification shall state that work has been constructed in compliance with the Project
design plans and specifications. If any deviations are found from the approved plans, the certification
shall include 2 list of all deviations along with an explanation that justifies the reason to accept each
deviation. All deviztions shall have had prior written approval from Commerce in advance of the
deviation being constructed.
13} Upon completion of the Project, Grantee shall be responsible for the perpetual maintenance of
the facilities on its system that are constructed under this Agreement as agreed to in Bxhibit E. The |-

tnd performance bond in accordance
o

Page 21 of 38

ds provided pursnant to chis Agreement in a timely manner and solely




terms of this provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement and may be enforced by

RETURN ON INVESTMENT. Grantee’s failure to meet the Return on Investment criteria set
forth herein will result in the additional financial consequences set forth in Section 5, below.

Commerce Agreement No.: G092

1) Grantee shall cectify that a private capital investment (excluding the acquisition or leasing of real
property) of at least $23 million has been made and paid for by private businesses at the location of

Work, after the Effective Date and on or before December 31 of the year on which the ten (10) year
anniversary of the Completion Date falls (such date, the “Capiral Investment Date™,

2) Grantee shall certify that at least 175 New Jobs have been created as a result of the Project, calculated
as set forth in Section 13 of this Scope of Work, after the Effective ate and on oz before December

Commerce.
c
the Project or in connection wi
31+ of the year on which the ten
Creation Date’ ’}
d.

Project:

1) Design and Engineering- Grantee shall cos
100,000 gallon package wastewater t:eatmeﬂt‘-

and SR-59.
2) Secure FDEP Utility Permit,
County Permits.

3) Package Wastewater Treatment Rﬁpﬁnﬂht}' Grantee ﬁhﬁjl compleie the construction of a package
wastewater treatment plant facility.

5) Upon 100% completion of all tasks g d. m’d 38
Manager a comp] t:téd signed
form of which i i, sfl%fched‘hereto as Exhibit

Commerce’s Agree;n i}

G

R

F]

Commerce’s KﬁE}\gﬁQNSIB 11]

ITIES: Cornm&ce shall monitor progress, review reports, conduct

3.

site visits, as Commerce dctem:imes

payments to Graptte.:.,
P N “

ith the Project, calculated as set forth in section 13 of this Scope of

{10) year anniversary of the Compyletadﬁ&ﬂ{ate falls (such date, the *“Job

FDOT ROW Co §

“of the Scope G.’."ork Grantee shall submit to
ineer’$” Certification of Compliance, the
sxgnLd and 5 ;d by a Professional Engineer.

’r/

sary at Comnjggyg:es sole and absolute discretion, and process

o
all ptovidé the following scrvices as specified:

Financial

Minimum Level of Service Consequences

Grantee shall comp Gt t;@,nd provide }
copies of final design ahdwenglneend'g
plans, specifications, bid pla:; ,ermuts
as described in Section. 2.2 mﬂ;& b of
the Scope of Work. &

Failure to meet the
minimum level of service
shall result in non-payment.

Grantee may be allowed
reimbursement upon 30%,90% and
100% completion of the deliverable as
evidence by submission of the
following:

a. 30%-Copy of the final signed and
sealed design plans.

b. 90%-Copy of signed and scaled
specifications.

c. $00%- Copies of final bid
documents,

d. Invoice package in accordance with
Section 7 of the Scope of Work

DELIVERABLE NOT TQ EXCEED: $1,000,000.00 |

Deliverable No. 2: Construction

Page 22 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G092

Financial
Tasks Minimum Level of Service Consequences
Grantee may be allowed Failure to meet the

Grantee shall complete the activities | reimbursement upon 10%, 20%,30%, | minimum level of service
described in section 2.b and 2.d. of 40%,50%,60%,70%,80%,90%, and shall result in non-payment.

the Scope of Work. 100% completion of the deliverable as
evidence by submission of the Commerce shall withhold
following; 10% of the total Agreement
a. Completed AIA Forms G702 | amount until Grantee
and G703, signed by a licensed provides proof to
professional certifying to the .. | Commerce, and Commerce
percentage of project completion. accepts that the project is . <

b. Photographs of project ips®
progress; and a
c Invoice package in agcttdance
with Section 7 of the Scojiefof W(?ﬁ(‘:@,

:;:1‘00% coimnplete,

DEERMERABLE NGO

TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $4,210,000.00:" Y

é:?,»
Cost Shifting: deliverable amounts specified mfh?i:;

., 3
"\’;thc De]jvé’;@?les section abiie are established
based on the Parties' estimation of sufficient deliver 3 serviges Falfilling grant pusposes under the
Agreement in otder to designate payment points during’tiesAgreement Period; hgivever, this is not
intended to restrict Commerce's ability t¢iipprove and reimbiitse allowable costs, incurred by Grantee
in providing the deliverables herein. Pﬁoiﬁj%%ﬁg%&appmval fr&fﬁi@pmetce's Agreement Manager is
required for changes to the above Delivemﬁlg afoints that do notidxceed, ten percent (10%) of each
deliverable total funding amount. Changes t"hggt exce efﬁ;:l_x‘gp petcenti(: 0%) of each deliverable total
funding amount will requitéia Eormal writfé*gﬁfmendi%%:- . dégcribed in Section 24., of the
Agreement. Regardless,;ﬁ%:"no &vert.shall Comrrﬁ;ce reimbursei#tsts. of more than the total amount

of this agreement. 7

55
T

mymerce may demand, and Grantee shall repay to the State, a
ent (4095 of the total award under this Agreement. If Grantee does not
satisf'y?:;&‘g«c& requirements sefiforth in'Section 2(c)(2) and (3) of this Scope of Work, then Commerce .
may dermiifid, and Grantee SHAll repay to the State, a prorated amouat of one hundred percent (100%) o
of the total: agard under s Agreement. If Grantee has not received reimbursement for the total
amount of Furidsyayailabledtider this Agreement, then Commerce will reduce the total award amount
under this Agreefiéh; ]}}ﬂh amount equal to such sanction, and Grantee shall only be required o repay
out of Grantee’s firids the difference thereon. Commerce has the right, in its sole discretion, to
demand repayment'of all funds provided to Grantee under this Agreement if Grantee has not met all
the performance requirements sct forth herein as of the Expiration Date or the date this Agreement is
‘otherwise terminated. Tf Commerce makes such a demand for repayment, Grantee shall remit funds
to Commerce within twenty-four (24) months of such demand, In addition to any other remedies
available to Commerce, in the event that Grantee fails to remit such funds to Commerce within twenty-
four (24) months of such demand, then the amounts due from Grantee will accumulate interest From
the date of such demand until the repayment. Commerce will calenlate interest based on a 365-day
year using a fixed annual sate equal to 500 basis points over the “Prime Rate” as reporied in The Wall
Street Josrnal on the Bffective Date. Commerce shall calculate interest based on the number of days
elapsed after the 24th month and undl the day Grantee makes repayment. Notwithstanding anything
in Sections 4 and 5 of this Scope of Work to the contrary, in no event shall the aggregate sanctions

Page 23 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
imposed pursuant to Sections 4 and 5 of this Scope of Work exceed the total award under this
Agreement plus interest, if any, as determined pursuant to this Section 5.

Grantee shall only be eligible for its pro rata costs relative to its timely completion of the Project, and
Commerce shall withhold the remainder until the earlier of Grantee’s realization of timely performance
under the work schedule, or completion of the Project. For example, if Grantee submits an invoice
for reimbursement for $100,000 and the project is behind schedule by 10%, then Grantee shall only
be reimbursed for $90,000, and the remaining $10,000 will be withheld.

Notwithstanding anything in this Scope of Work to the contrary, subject to the terms and conditions

of this Section 5(c), Commerce hereby grants to Graatee the one-time right, privilege, and option (the .
“Option”) to extend the Expiration Date, the Completion Date, the | é)b Creatton Date, and the Capital " -

Investment Date by twelve {12) months. In the event that Grant éi’?‘en:clses the Option, within ten
(10) business days of exercising the Option, Grantee shall pay é Commerce a sanction equal to ten
percent (10%%) of the total award under this Apreement. The hbn shall be exercisable in whole but
not in part at any time from and after the Effective Ra.t& Gt?ﬂ;ife; may exercise the Option by
delivering to Commerce written notice of Gr'ultees"»mt Q%H e the Option (a.n “Hxercise
Notice”). Upon Commerce’s receipt of an Exqcsse Nbtite, the exct

irrevocable. &

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the remed: tli¥in thi i fifute liquidated
damages and that in the event of a breach of this"tope;of Woi ges suffered by
Commerce would be unreasonalily, difficult to dete and that the Parties would not have a
convenient and adequate alternativerto.the liquidated dan s st forth i Sections 4 and 5 of this

Scope of Work. Each of the P'u-uea. i\
provided in Sections 4 and 5 of this Scope
harm that would be caused hy any suc
Commerce will suffe;g) 5]

waives any ::lght Bt it

grees that the liquidated damages
_le .relationship to the anticipated

of Work are an mteg‘ia.lpgmt of t;lge transactions c?intcmplated by this Agreement and that without these
ptovi‘:lons Commcrce would figfienter into this Agrecment
e

ton A quarte ly basis all progress relating to the tasks identified in
ions 2.c. and 4- ngtterly rcﬁo‘tlg are due to Commerce no later than 30 calendar days after the
of each quarter of ¥ t])c progmt‘ﬁ}véar and shall be sent each quarter until submission of the
qdrmmshahve close-out :e? rt. The/Ending dates for each quarter of the program year are: September
30, Dec hgr 31, March 31 :md June 30. The quarterly report shall include a summaty of project
progress, in tmg percentile of completlon of each task identifted in Section 4 and the current status
vesrmen“c identified in Section 2.c. The summary shall also include any issues ot
haffect the ability of Grantec to meet the terms of this Agreement.

inority and [Pisabled Veteran Business Enterprise Report: Grantee shall provideaa Mmortty
and Service-Disahffd Veteran Business Enterpnse Report with each invoice summarizing the -
participation of certified and non-certified minority and service-disabled vetesan subcontractors and
material suppliets for that period and the project to date. Grantee shall include the names, addresses,
and dollar amount of each certified and non-certified Minority Business Enterprise and Service-
Disabled Veteran Enterptise patticipant. Commerce’s Minotity Coordinator can be reached at (850),
245-7471 to answer concerns and questions.
Close-out Report: No later than 60 calendar days after this Agreement ends or is teeminated, Grantee
shall provide copies of all paid inveices to document completed work.
Follow-up Reports: By no later than January 31t of the year immediately following the year on which
the ten (10) year anmiversary of the Completion Date falls, Grantee shall provide Commerce with a
written certifieation of the actual mumber of New Jobs created by each business as a result of the

Page 24 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: GO092
Project (including the name of each business), Retained Jobs tetained by each business as a result of *
the Project (including the name of each business) (if applicable), and the amount of private capital
investment made and paid for by private businesses at the location of the Project or in connection with
the Project after the Effective Date (including the name of each business). This paragraph will survive
termination of this Agreement.

7. INVOICE SUBMITTAL AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE: Commerce shall pay Grantee in
accordance with the following schedule in the amount identified per deliverable in Section 4 above. The

deliverable amount specified does not establish the value of the deliverable. In accordance with the Funding

Requirements of s, 215.971(1), F.5. and Section 5 of this Agreement, Grantee and its subcontractors may only
expend funding under this Agreement for allowable costs resulting from obligations incurred during this
Agreement. To be eligible for reimbursement, costs must be in compl('mcé }*«}th laws, rules and regulations
applicable to expenditures of State funds, mcludmg, but not hrmtcd t;ix” ['Tle. Refetencc Gutdt, for State
Evpenchtures (https: . d £ ind-auditi 15/ state
agencies/referencepuideforstateexpenditures.pdf),
2. Grantee shall provide onc invoice per i
period of time. g

b. The following documents shall be submitted witly tlie itemided invoice:

1) A cover letter sngned by Grantee’ sﬂ&‘igrccment Manager cer that the costs bemg

claimed in the invoice package: (Qﬁ“r %spec.lﬁcally 1 the project re['mqsented to the State in

the budget appropriation; (2) are for onja or more ofithe components ?13‘ aréd in Section 4,
DELIVERABLES, of this SCOPE OF W,@RK, h'we been paid; ay ) were incurred

during tlm Agreement"

which work was pcrfmmed, amount of

pﬁtgd to d'lte
A ceruﬁcatlon by a kicensed engmé’érailsmg ATA form 70@ -and G703, ot then' substantive

4) Photogra}g%

5) A copy,of p iamng docume; &auon for ven f'[:)'lyments,
G A qg‘py wof the cmgéll_ed checl(s} sp‘:gﬁc ta the pro;ect and
7) A copy éf he b:mk‘- *htement that ingludes the cancelled check.
¢ The State may requir wiﬁ o_rmatlon from Gr‘mtee that the State deems necessary to verify .
that I;ht; @:\?’1 s have bes d‘ff‘y dﬂréd‘” q this Agj:eement
d. A].'l ﬂdcﬁﬁmen‘ffﬁ?;‘r\[ fgﬁ

ilure to complete“”t e dehvéfftbles and/or tasks in accordance with the requirements of this
Pparticular, as spgified above in Section 4, DELIVERABLES, will result in Commerce’s
assessment of the Spteified ﬁn‘mcl{l‘«consequences If '1ppropn'1te should the Parties agree in writing to a
corrective action pluitifilien of th”é, Simmediate imposition of financial consequences, the plan shall specify
additional financial cons i; cogh o be apphed after the effective date of the corrective action plan. This
provlsmn for financial con$¢giténces shall in no manner affect Commerce’s rights under this Agreement, at
law, or in equity, lncludlng%ut not limited to, Commerce’s right to terminate this Agreement as provided
elsewhere in this Agreement. Geantee’s payment of imposed financial consequences shall be in accordance
with applicable provisions of this Agreement, and this Scope of Work.

9, NOTIFICATION OF INSTANCES OF FRAUD: Upon discovery, Grantee shall report all
known or suspected instances of Grantee, or Grantee’s agents, contractors, or employees, operational fraud or
criminal activities to Commerce’s Agreement Manager in writing within twenty-four (24) chronological hours.

Page 25 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
10. GRANTEE'S RESPONSIBILITIES UPON TERMINATION: If Commerce issues 1 Notice of
"Termination to Grantee, except as otherwise specified by Commerce in that notice, Grantee shalk: (1) stop work
under this Agreement on the date and to the extent specified in the notice; (2) complete performance of such
pazt of the work as shall not have been terminated by Commerce; (3} take such action as may be necessary, or
as Commerce may specify, to protect and preserve any property which is in the possession of Grantee and in
which Commetce has or may acquire an interest; and (4) upon the effective date of termination of this
Agreement, Grantee shall transfer, assign, and make available to the Commerce all property and materials
belonging to Commerce. No extra compensation will be paid to Grantee for its services in connection with
such transfer or assignment.

11 NON-DISCRIMINATION: Grantee shall not discriminate unlawfully against any individual
employed in the pf:rformance of this Agreement because of race, reljglon ‘tolor gender, physical handicap
unrelated to such person’s ability to engage in this work, national ougm, an,qé’s ,or age. Grantee shall provide
a harassment-free worlpluce, with any allegation of harassment to be g : n priority attention and action.

12, DISPOSITION OF PROJECT PROPERTY: E:
2. Pusuant to the NONEXPENDABLE PROPER’ I'&@%B; of tl'us }é cement, upon termination of

this Agreement, Grantee is authorized to retain mjﬁiershlp sof any noncqu{;,dmb]c property purch'l.sed

under this Agreement; however, Grantee herebg,&grants to Commerce a rlght;gf first refusal in all such
property prior to d.lsposltlon of any such pgdpe Sy during it§:depreciable life,” mmccordﬂnce with the
depreciation schedule in use by Grantee, Gnnte_ ﬁhaﬂ pi;(:\?ﬁe . written notice 8ﬁ such planned
disposition and await Commerce’s response prior t09 of the property. “Diéposltlon as used

herein, shall include, but is not hmil; | o, Grantee no I using the none\pend'ﬂ)le property for the

uses authorized herein; the sale, ex ﬁg}%&c teansfer, tradet Byor disposal of any such nonexpendable
property. Commerce, in its sole discr t‘@g}&mmy require @faﬂtee to refund to Commerce the fair

market value of the nonexpendable pmjze:ty*ﬂf@lc‘ time of d15§<5$1119n -rather than taking possession

of the nonexpendable property. gi" &"

b. Gantee shall pmwd ilyance written ﬂ ﬂﬂcanon o}
foltowing the tecuiifiation of this Agreemcntl Grantee prdﬁﬁﬁés to take any action that will impact
Grantee’s 0\m§§‘:§iﬁ§) of this Ag::eement propeisty or modify’ “the use of this Agreement property from

: _Hhereif}.“ If either of these situations arise, Commerce shall have the right, in
e réimburse Commerce for part or all the funding

mme::ce, if during the five-year period

ficoperty set Lforth in i Agreemem' in accordmce wtth the following:
1) G:antee 1§”$iﬁih0rlzcd toif rta:quownetslup of the J.rnpx:ovements to ceal propecty so long as:
{1) Grantee ™ wjggot 80

“Awithin five yegg!s of the termination of this Agfeement Grantee is unable to satisfy the

reqi’fi”.r ments smtéd qbove, Grantee shall nonfy Commcrce in \vntmg of the c::cumst’mces o

its sole dlsc:el:lon, to demand rmrnbuﬂement of p'u't or all the Fundmg provided to Grantee
unider this Agreement.

13. CRITERIA FOR MEASURING RETURN ON INVESTMENT:
4. Project Jobs Definitions and Determination. The following definitions and procedures will be used

in determining and reporting the number of new jobs created as a result of the Project.

Page 26 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
1) New Job — means a full-time salaried employee, or a full-time equivalent {an “ETE”)
employee who wotks at least 35 paid hours per week, created as a result of the Project. New
Jobs may include positions obtained from a temporary employment agency or employee
leasing company, through a union agreement, or co-employment under a professional

employer organization agreement that result directly from the Project in this state. New ...

Jobs may not include temporary or seasonal jobs associated with cyelical business activities,
ot to substitute for permanent employees on a leave of absence, or temporary construction
jobs related to the Project. In tabulating hours worked, any paid leave an emplovee takes
during the pay period, such as vacation or sick leave, may be included. Jobs only constitute
New Jobs if they are created on or after the Effective Date, and only if they result in a net
increase in overall employment as a result of the Project. Jobs are not considered new if
they moved from another Florida location to the location G the Project, unless the relocated
positions are back-filled with net new-to-Florida full-timy qmv'ﬂent jobs paying at least the
wage of the transferred position(s).
2) Retained Jobs — Retained Jobs are jobs that wo}q,t ize been eliminated, or relocated to
another Florida location or ocutside of the e, if b “‘"P ject was not undertaken by

Grantee. g
3) Leased Employees — Leased employeeahﬂay b nted tow;f\i%‘t?r

if they are engaged to meet an on-gomg labor réquirement diectly Hltmg from the Project.
Independent Contractors meetmg I&icntm:n oft le%ed employcesw’ma,y also be counted
towards Grantee’s job requirement so’lafig as the ac;tu'tl wages paid, e\c!'p;dﬁg expenses, by
a business are documented on a form 10§Q§§/Ilsgellmcous Income to thgzindividual person.
Unless payments are m*»aubstance for individya | independent contractdrs, payments made
to limited linbility compam or other buslneﬁé ntities {identified on the 1099 with an
FEIN) generally do not” qu:ill&mas New Jobs “a§nthey relate to the “fee-for-service”
arrangement described below Emfﬁl yees of a busifiess, ’ilmt has entered into a fee-for-
service contract with a busmess bcnaﬁﬁn om the Prﬁ;é“ct in which the primary purpose
##tas, fo perform aerwces (rathé&iling, o provide individual employees) are not
obs. ﬁxﬂ*mples of fee~forusemce c ts in which the service providers’
em]zlpffé@ are gen lly not considétcd ‘Ne\v_]o ” include, but are not limited to, mail-
rmltbrﬂl and lmdsc‘).pmg services, food-service providers, accountmg
bi”h gpendcnt cei:@;lﬁcd public aceounting firms and legal services

o, --
hgj‘:gggﬂwds will be used to determine the number of Project

b8 and divlde by the numbcr of months.

of the nu:mber of hours wotked by quch md.tvldua.l
3) New Job Calculation — The number of New Jobs created on or after the Effective Date
must equal or exceed the number of jobs in existence prior to the Effective Date. The
number of New Jobs required te be created in accordance with this Scope of Work for the
applicable petformance period must exceed the number of existing jobs plus the number of
New Jobs created in any performance period.

c. Determination of Capital Investment. Commerce accepts as capital investment so-called “hard”

costs (such as construction and renovations of buitdings, and acquisition of equipment) and “soft”

antee’s jobs requirement -

: For salaried Project Jobs, add the monthly B

costs (such 2as eligible capitalized labor, architectural and engineering services, and document printing =+ -

and mailing costs). Eligible capital investment expenditures are those that ate ordered/invoiced and
paid for on or after the Effective Date and before the Capitel Investment Date.

Page 27 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

- End of Exhibit A (SCOPE OF WORK) -

Page 28 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G092
Exhibit B

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

The administration of resources awarded by Commerce to the recipient {herein otherwise referred to as
“Grantee”} may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by Commerce as described in this Exhibie B.

MONITORING. In additton to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F -
Audit Requirements, and section 215.97, Florida Statutes (F.S.), as revised (see AUDITS below}, monitoring
procedures may include, but not be limited to, on-site visits by Commerce staff, limited scope audits as defined
by 2 CFR §200.425, or other procedures. By entering into this agreement, thie gecipient agrees to comply and
cooperate with any monitoring procedures or processes deemed appropdatgﬁ}%i@ommerce. In the event the
Commetce determines that a limited scope audic of the tecipient is appropgite, therecipient agrees to comply
with any additional instructions provided by Commerce staff to theitégipient regarding such audit. The
recipient further agrees to comply and cooperate with any ins@gg{ﬁ‘bns;’:f@ip\vs, investigations, or audits
deemed necessary by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or A&g}'t&‘;General
S

AUDITS. d
PART I: FEDERALLY FUNDED. This part ish icable if tlfé”:};cipient is a sta ocal government
1200.64, aj},&iﬁggo.?o. ;

or a nonprofit organization a5 defined in 2 CFR §200.90;:%
1. A recipient that expends $750,000,0r more in federal g& irds in its fiscal year muist have a single or
program-specific audit conducted ififigordance with the Pivisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart B - Audit
Requirements. EXHIBIT 1 to this forilizs, the federal ré%ai;» ces awarded through Commerce by
this agreement. In determining the fé@exﬂ*&%ﬁ@@és expended” figcal year, the recipient shall
consider all sources of federal awards, }i}éfludiﬁé‘gfg(}cral resoutcéé;i}i}ié"c’eived from Commerce. The
determination of amgunts of federal awnrd%/éi’?pendég%@g}}ld be iif accordance with the guidelines
established in 2 CRIF§§206:502-503. An audit of the recipitiit;géinducted by the Auditor General in
accordance witlylig provisiong:of 2 CFR §20@:é14- witl meg/é:iﬁc requirements of this Part.

£

2 L U,
2. Fortheandit :equirei%i:\ ts add. in Part T, patagraph 1, the recipient shall fulfill the requirements

relative to auditee responsibilificsdiprovided in 2EFR §§200.508-512.
s i, i Wil
seipent ﬂi’hﬁ?éfiﬁf_gds less'Eh $'750,ﬁ0®?&.§§ﬁféﬂéral awards in its fiscal year is not required to have

h the provisions of 2 CER 200, Subpast F - Audit Requirements.
00 in federal awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an
[ios 3 i “provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements,
the caifiof the audit must“l;f{ﬁ:sp:dd fréin non-federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be
paid fromjecipient sesourcEiobtained from other than federal entities).
(e 3

D.,’ﬂns part is applicable if the recipient is a nonstate entity as defined by Section

il

PART II: STATE FUK:
215.97(2), Florida Statutes

L Inthe event that the recipient expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess
of $750,000 in any fiscal year of such recipient {for fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, and thereafter),
the recipient must have a state single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance with
section 215.97, F.5.; Rule Chapter 691-5, F.A.C,, State Financial Assistance; and Chapters 10.550
(local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the
Auditor General. EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the state financial assistance awarded through
Commerce by this agreement. In determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year,
the recipient shall consider all sources of state financial assistance, including state financial assistance
received from Commerce, other state agendies, and other nonstate entities. State financial assistance
does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources received by a nonstate entity

Page 29 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G092

for federal program matching requirements.

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part IT, paragraph 1, the recipient shall ensure that the andit
complies with the requirements of section 215.97(8}, F.5. This includes submission of a financial
reporting package as defined by section 215.97(2), E.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental
entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.

3. Ifthe recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for fiscal years
ending fune 30, 2017, and thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of scction
215.97, F.8,, is not required. If the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance
in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of section
215.97, F.5,, the cost of the audit must be paid from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.e., the cost of
such an audit must be paid from the recipient’s resources obtained {f6m other than state entities).

PART iII: OTHER AUDIT REQUIREMENTS. . i
(NOTE: This part world be nsed to specify any additional andit nguimmﬁg_pffv ofe.’d\b'}i@ﬁg.f tate awarding entity that are iolely
a watter of that State awarding entity's policy (ie., the audit is not rggﬁ??‘d;‘%&dem! or Sitdre, Jawss and s wot in conflict with
other Federal or State andit requirements).  Pursuant to Section 213.97(8); Foida Statuds veiate agencies may condwcl or
arrange for aidits of state financial assistance that ave in additippie andits condycted in aceordance g Section 215.97, Flovida
Statutes. I such an event, the State awarding agengy vinst aﬁ%ﬁé’g@g ~finding thafutl cost of seuch adiitiy m’ﬁagg’itm ) .

Eoeanes '
N/A . i

e

PART IV: REPORT SUBMISSION. ™
1 Copies of reporting packages for ﬂudit&goné?&éﬁ@@ %n accordancelyy
Requirements, and required by Part T of ‘tlﬁsi,rfés’ T
§200.512, by or on _behalf of the recipi(\:‘tigﬂirectlj'
provided in 2 CFRAZ0036/4d §200512.

{
The FAC’s \vébg?%é; rovides 4

ta entry systeﬂhﬁ%u and tequifl;éa forms for submitting the single audit

¢ location of tlié, FAC and data entry system may be found at the
o, :;'“

g'pornngfé\ﬁclmges ré“qﬁ?j}j?’?i)y Part IT of this form shall be submitted by or on

2 Copies of finih il i
“directly ’t'ﬁ:;‘éach of the following:

Ei%]‘mlf of the recipt

v
)

the follgiving addresses:

i, e
Elé%%bgic copies (pfgtcrted): or Paper (hard capy):
Auditld ifft; .myflosi m’\@c »m Department of Commerce
4:3:%%% W:::;;i“ MSC # 75, Callc!well Building
”ﬁ?”i‘%:‘?‘ 107 East Madison Street
Fe ‘Fallahassee, FL 32399-4126

b.  The Aunditor General’s Office at the following address:

Auditor General

Local Government Audits/342
Clande Pepper Building, Room
401 111 West Madison Strect
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450

The Auditor General’s website (https://flauditor.gov/) provides instructions for filing an
electronic copy of a financial reporting package.

Page 30 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

3 Copies of reports or the management letter required by Pazt ITI of this form shall be submitted by
or on behalf of the recipient directly to:

Electronic copies {preferred): or Paper (hard copy):

Audit@deo.myflorida.com Department of Commerce
MSC # 75, Caldwell Building
107 East Madison Street

Tnllahnssee, FL. 32399-4126

4. Any reports, management letters, or other information required tg ,Bé sub‘m:ttcd Commerce pursuant
to this agreement shall be submltted timely in accordance witly; g QQFR §200.512, section 215.97, F 5.,
and Chapters 10550 (local governmental entities), %q,d @0 {nonprofit and for—proﬁt
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as apph&@bl%

g
5 Recipients, when submitting financial rcporﬂngpa,d?ages tézéommerce Fd:?aud.lts done in accardance
with 2 CFR. 200, Subpart F - Audit chmremca’fs or Chapgess 10.550 (localégovemmental entities)
and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit orgfmlﬁmé’ms) Rules 0(%1;(: Auditor Géﬂe’i‘ﬂl should indicate
the date that the reporting package was delivere g rectp;%’ tin correspond ﬁk‘%bcompmymg
the reporting package. A/ h

PART V: RECORD RETENTION. “ile, recipient shall ‘ritain sufficient records demonstrating its
compliance with the terms of this Agrcementf % iperiod of five & Sycars from the date the audit report is
issued, or five.(5) state fiscal years after all repogting 't uements are'Sﬂt(xﬁc and final paymients have been |
received, whichever period is longer, and shall ,?i[]ow Qéhirgﬁsge, or its d%él%nee, CFQ, or Auditor General
aceess to such records upon ;gquesg The recipient s],lﬁll ensure ] dit, working papers are made available to
Commerce, or its des1gﬂee$:e€fﬁc\’)y ot A‘ud.ltnr Genem‘hupon requestigER perdod of five (5) years from the date
the audit report is issy (i{ nless extgﬁded in wntm'g y Commgree. In addition, if any ltigation, claim,
negotiation, audit, or othei'o;ﬁ:»ﬂon m\,ﬁl\’mg the l:ECO}dS has been started prior to the expiration of the
contralling period as identified ove, tl:§ gtds shall be rétﬂinbd until completion of the action and resolution
of all issues whicliarse from it, rﬁﬁ»’unu 2:'&?1121 :Qf the E ntrolhng period as-identified above, whichever is
longer. 5

r;mamdeﬁ gﬁfage Intentionally Left Blank —

’uuyy N

Page 31 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
EXHIBIT 1 to Exhibit B

FUNDING RESOURCESFEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE SUBRECIPIENT
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

Federal Awarding Apency 1.8, Treasury

Catalog of Pederal Domestic Assistance Title Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Relief Fund

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number

Award Amount

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMEN'TS API’LICABLE/?.['O TI—IE. FEDERAL @;OURCES
AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEME],B{;‘ ARE AS FOLLOWS “1’}%
. k-

attachments or exlublts thereto. ’

2. The Subrecipient shall comply \vlfhﬁccuon 603 of the ﬁﬁ@emcan Rescue Plan Act (March 11, 2021),
regulations adopted by T'reasury pursu%ﬂ; to sectton GO3(f) hf‘the Act, and guidance issued by Treqsury
regarding these funds, *:‘:mt.

3. C ommerce will provlde funds to the Subreciple by ussu.mg one 3

¥
oalel

“SER_A”) Each [FA h,k ]a;nclude specl ;: termns, coﬁ’dluons, assumnccs, restrictions, or other
instructions am:illcable to\tgi;g funds provxdl;d by the N. F “Fhe Subrecipient shall be governed
by all apphcaiafégiﬁ“@, rules; sﬁnd regulatmxi\sk mcludmg, but not necessarily limited to, those
identified in Award"T rms “*’Condltlons and;,()ther Instructions of the Subrecipient’s NFA.
The Subrt;’(:lpxent sha Q@Qfﬁ]ﬂ)ﬁ,} ith all tentj*gf’contamed within an NFA as a condition

prem{a"hfé'l, Eh.g [Eceq:;i?‘ i nds 3 d"fﬁs. @n Qﬁgomg condition to the use and expenditure of

State Project:

State Awarding Agency

Catalog of State Financial Assistance Title

Catalog of State Financial Assistance Number

Page 32 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

$0.00

Award Amount

LE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED

IREMENTS APPLI
ANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLEOWS

COMPLIANCE R
U

P

s,

"
.

i

.

s
o

hat the information about

<,

TE: Title 45 CF.R, 75.352 and section 215.97(5), Florida Statutes,

NO
F

d to the Subrecipient.

R

vides

ederal Programs and State Projects included in Attachment 1 be pro

'x?:::;

G

- Remainder of Page Intentigifill

Page 33 of 38



Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
Exhibit C

AUDIT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

Grantee Name:
FEIN: Grantee’s Fiscal Year:
Contact Person Name and Phone Number:
Contact Person Email Address:

Did Grantee expend state financial assistance, during its fiscal year, that it received under any agreement (e.g;,

agreement, grant, memorandum of agreement, memorandum of understatfding, economic incentive award
ctetale,

agreement, etc.) between Grantee and the Department of Commerce {Comiriéice)? Yes No

P
If the above answer is yes, also answer the following before prog:cedj:;g’? tadem 2:

Did Grantee expend $750,000 or more of state financial assig gincesfrom C éifkc;rce and all other sources of
Y N&sy,

]

state financial assistance combined) during its fiscal yen.t?f,:-::"

o

B "y

If yes, Grantee certifies that it will timely compl 1v‘wth all applicable state siﬁﬁfégor project-specific
audit requirements of section 215.97, Florida Statute‘?%?igd the j.;j!ilejf:able rules of '%@@parment of

Financial Services and the Auditor General. %'ilf?i‘*&u e

e 3

. o L
Did Grantee expend federal awards, durmg(é fg%;@gggl year that it redéfyed under any agreement (e.g., agreement,
grant, memorandum of agreement, memonmd‘qﬂﬁig%dcrstmdjng, &momic incentive award agreement, etc.)
between Grantee and Commerce? Yes _ % Na

A

o o
S e S, . . o
er the followm‘?gibféfore pf&fggﬁigl Zxecution of this certification:
h e

If the above answer is yes,;ﬁ%@

hy G
in federal awids (from Qéfﬁ'xmercc and all other sources of federal
Yes % No

Did Graatee expend %;553 0 or n;o‘
awards combined) during its*

If yes, Granige:¢

S

. s
requiremgntso
I

Signature of Authot Reptesentﬂige Date

e
e

Printed Name of AuthorizédRéprescntative Title of Authorized Representative

&

Page 34 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G092

EXHIBIT D

Page 35 of 38



Comimerce Agreement No.: G0092
EXHIBIT E

NOTICE OF COMPLETION AND ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

FLORIDA JOB GROWTH GRANT FUND AGREEMENT
Between
THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
and

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Commerce Agreement No.

In accordance with the Terms and Conditions of thé“ Flondq _]ob Growth Gr‘lﬂé“fund Agreement, the
undersigned provides notiftcation that the work authm:&ed by this ABreement is comp'iefag}s of

By:
Name:
Title:

N i
In accordance with the Tetim; 1, and %ﬂdﬂjons of th Florida _]ob Growth Giant Fund Agreement, the
undetsngned certifies that all wi wlnt% oy ally rcquu:cé’n certification by a Professional Engineer has been
completed in W %ﬁ ce with th A‘ﬁ?m ect Cd"ﬁ;{%cuon pl 8 and specifications. If any deviations have been
made fro@ﬁe appi V&ﬁfﬁ agas a 1.15 devid Svalong with an explanation that justifies the reason to
accept eat:h deviation, will' bé ached %m Certificition. Also, with submittal of this certification, Grantee
shall.; fﬁﬁ;i Conunerce a set 8 *«&2 bullt’ * @sécemﬁed by the Engineer of Record/CEL

By: DI,

SEAL: Name:

Date:

Page 36 of 38




Commerce Agreement No.: G0092
Exhibit F

STATE AND FEDERAL STATUTES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICIES

The Grantee agrees to, and, by signing this Agreement, certifies that, it shall comply with all applicable Federal,
State and local laws, regulations, and policies governing the funds provided under this Agreement, including,
but not imited to the following:

1.

2

Section 603 of the American Rescue Plan Act (March 11, 2021}, repuladons adopted by Tieasory pursuant
to section 603{f) of the Act, and guidance issued by "I'reasury regarding the foregoing,

‘The Grantee also agrees to comply with all other applicable federal stgnuies, regulations, and executive
orders, and The Grantee shall provide for such compliance by other quﬁ{d&g} .my agreements it eaters into

with other parties relating to this award,

[ederal regulations applicable to this award include, without 1111111'18‘\ , the fcll(}wmg

2. Uniform Administrative Requitements, Cost Prmcsp]cq »,glu(l"ﬁ‘\udﬂ*gquutmcnta for Federal Awards,
2 C.ER. Part 200, other than such provisions as lrc.ngg.;y\ﬁuy dc,tumip;,n ¢ inapplicable to this Avward
and subject to such exceptions as may be orheavlw wpiovided by ™ cegsuty. Subpart F - Aadir
Requirements of the Uniform Guidance, unpleraﬁmmg the Smgle Audit ﬁtffg;ﬁh,ﬂl apply to this award.

b, Universal Edentfter and System for Award J%L\ rement (Sﬁ‘l(}/fj, 2CHR P'Lcl:sz, pursuant to which
the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 %, Part 25 n,JIercby 111(:01.'[)01’:1['6.(1"1)37 reference.

¢ Reporting Subaward and Executive Compen b'mozf ;f )rm.lgé“ﬁ LR, Part ITUA“:’[)ursumt to which
the award term set forth in Appendix A to 2 CFR. P 0 is hereby incorporared by reference.

d. OMB Guidelines to Agencies on & fent and Suspumon (Nonpmcuu:ment) 2
C.F.R. Part 180, including the tequ or condition in all lower tier covered
transactions (contracts and subcontzact; @q@;d in 2 CILK 180, subpart B) that the award 15
subject to 2 CI'R, Part t80 and Treasuiys 1m§[ Henting rogulatioy ‘*ﬁ“’n C.RR. Part 19.

¢.  Recipient Integrity a rformance M’lltu s,é,‘élmui'm (10, which rht‘ award tenmn set forth in 2 CER.
Part 200, Appmdi;z»& et 200 15 11{..1‘(.[‘;? incorposatediliy,

f.  Reguirements fcaifpmgnr ret3Workoplace, 31 GILR. Pazt ’JO &

g New Restrictidns ?ﬁiﬁ obbvm a1 C.ILR. Part "«J

h. Uniform Relocation y

and i implen enting reguli

(ﬂ..neni [y “%éi@b]é- fcdel‘.

§ »\cquzsmon: Act of 1970 (42 U.5.C. §§ 4601-4655)

gglf&}glwsqhd regulations.
crzmmmt?m apphcflble 1o this award include, without imitation, the

196 4742 US.C. §§ 20004 et seq) and Treasury's implementing
r(.gul&i;imus at 31 CER. 1’@292 \viu,%h pmlnblt discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national
origin titider programs or g *lémhcs' receiving federal financial assistance;

rgg%gisnmvu Rc‘l;ﬁ?lrcmmtb Cost Prnciples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
i

c. T i:c Fan: Hous A(.t hﬂ%\"lll of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq.), which
prohibits dﬁcmmﬁit}tm1 i housing on the basis of 1ace, color, religion, national origin, sex, familial
status, oc disability; 27

d. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended {29 U.S.C. § 794), which prohibits

discrimination on the basis of disability under any progmm or acdvity receiving lederal fmnancial

assistance;

The Age Diserimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.5.C, §§ 6101 et seq), and Treasury's

implementing regulations at 31 C.FR. Part 23, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of age ia

programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; and

£ Title 1I of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disabitity under programs, activities, and services provided or
made available by state and local governments or instrumentalities or agendies thereto,

Halch Act. Grantee agrees to comply, as applicable, with requirements of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§ 1501~

1508 and 7324-7328).

e}

Page 37 of 38




. Reducing Text Messaging While Driving: lfﬁjizsuant to Bxecutiv

Commerce Agreement No.: G0092

False Statements. Grantee understands that making false statements or claims in connection with this award

is a violation of federal law and may result in criminal, civil, or administrative sanctions, including fines,

imprisonment, civil damages and penalties, debarment from pasticipating in federal awards or contracts,
and/or any other remedy available by law,

Publications, Any publications produced with funds from this award must display the following language:

"This project [is being] [was] supported, in whole or in part, by federal award number [enter project FAIN]

awarded to [name of Recipient] by the U.S. Department of the Treasury."

Disclaimer.

& The scceptance of this award by the Grantee does not in any way establish an agency relationship
between the United States and Grantee.

Protections for Whistleblowers.

a. In accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, Grantee may not discharge, dgmete or otherwise discriminate
against an employee in reprisal for dlsclosmg to any of the list ofwo 3 gr entities provided below,
information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence g¥ gross “Thismanagement of a federal
contract o1 grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of gifhiarity relating to a federal contract or
grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or; l;?i‘y, ofEpiclation of law, rule, or regulation
related to a federal contract (including the wmpetlt:o,gm%r negotiat % .of a contract} or grant. This
includes a management official or other employee ofthe G;dntee contra or subcontractor who has
the responsibility to investigate, discover, or ad ks misconduct. E

b, Grantee shall inform its employees in writing 6bthe rights aﬁi{runedms provi
the predominant native language of the wor oréb};gz’% o

Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States. Pursuanﬁ-f(i E.xecpt”ﬁ“re}@rder 13043, 62 Bj{f f)Zl’! (Apr. 18,

1957), Grantee should encourage its \{S;O]’)trd(..tﬂr.‘: to ado“ﬁtﬁ and“enforce on-the job seff belt policies and

programs for their employees when ope iting compary- -own® Q}nted or personally owned vehicles.

égernsl?» 74 FR 51225 (Oct. 6, 2009),

Grantee should enceurage its employees, §ubreé‘ﬁ:§1¢uts and cont to adopt and enforce pelicies that

ban text messaging while driving, and Griptee sH’é d ’srabizsh lace safely pelicies to decrease

accidents caused by distracted drivers. N b

L nder this section, in

Page 38 of 38




